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Design Concept of the Annual Report
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The annual report features various landmarks and the harmonious lives of
citizens as its main creative elements, using blue and green— colors that
symbolise the nature — as the primary tones. It presents a vision of a prosperous
city and community inclusion, reflecting our commitment to upholding the
service belief of the Land Registry. We aim to provide safe and convenient land
registration and search services for the public, promote property market
development, enhance the quality of social life, as well as create a more
prosperous, stable, and sustainable metropolis.
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HIGHLIGHTS OF THE YEAR
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
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Operating costs:

$443.5 [
m million
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Rate of return on fixed assets:

-12.3%
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BREMB R A
MmN\ No. of land documents delivered
ollollo] \o\ for registration:

373,966
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No. of imaged copies and
photocopies of land records
supplied:

682,464
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No. of Owners’ Corporations (OC)
registered:

120
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BERLHEFIEMEE:
No. of searches of
land registers:

5,048,587
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Usage of Integrated Registration
Information System (IRIS) Online
Services for search of land registers:

95%

WETREAXHFRHE -
No. of OC documents filed:

21,567
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The Secretary for the Civil Service’s
Commendation Award Scheme 2024

Ms TING Yuet-ling, Biddy, Clerical Officer, was one
of the awardees of the Secretary for the Civil
Service’s Commendation Award 2024 in recognition
of her exceptional performance and dedication to
providing high quality services.

BRrEENE }

Office of The Ombudsman
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The Ombudsman’s Awards 2024

Miss LAU Sze-yan, Land Registration Officer and
Ms KU Wing-yee, Clerical Officer, received the
Ombudsman’s Awards 2024 for Officers of Public
Organisations. Both Miss LAU and Ms KU are
commended for delivering excellent services and
acknowledged for their professionalism, establishing
themselves as a role model in the public service.
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Awards for Land Registry Trading Fund Annual Report 2022/23 ‘

(EEM A Bz E £ 2022/23 FHRHIE TR EFR L FTTh £ FFHARIM
The Land Registry Trading Fund Annual Report 2022/23 received two awards in different international
competitions:

tt 28 Competition R Award 4l 3 Category

[EEEEZ L EE ] G 4 ENRI AR F 4R — BT — /M BER
2022/23 Vision Awards Gold Award Print-Based Annual Reports —
League of American Government — City/State/National
Communications Professionals

2022/23 Vision Awards

2023/24 % [ Mercury Excellence R FR—-—MWEHR —BEBZH

Awards Silver Award  Annual Reports — Online: Interactive

Mercury Excellence Awards 2023/24

RIELASFH U ETEORXHIRE
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caringorganisation ward of 15 Years Plus Caring Organisation Logo

B The Hong Kong Council of Social Service awarded the 15 Years Plus
Caring Organisation logo to the Land Registry (LR) in recognition of its
continuous commitment to caring for the community.

[ERB A 7 &l 2 i it %1
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KB ALEAA BN ABROBERI -

ERB Manpower Developer Award

The LR was accredited Manpower Developer from 1 April 2023 to 31 March
2025 in recognition of its outstanding achievements in manpower training and

development.
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Visit by the Hong Kong Institute of
Vocational Education (Sha Tin)

The LR introduced its services and the land registration system in Hong Kong to a group of Business and
Legal Studies students from the Hong Kong Institute of Vocational Education (Sha Tin) in June 2024.

ERANENMZLSUM L HEIMAHRE

THUEMA T2024F6 A NEFBNEMF 22 ALHERN
LS NARUERENS HE TEZSMHMAATFERFER
EAMENENLIHL R BRATENEI80FKH
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Visit by the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors
to the LR Archive

Two guided tours to the LR Archive were arranged for

members of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors in June 2024. Various types of manual
land records including original land grant documents dated back to the 1840s and
memorial plans with archival value were introduced.

S55EFHRRETBBE 2024 FRZHER

THOI M RE S ETEFRRU BB BEIER 2024 FRIGHEK | HEFZERNRVEE - F7H
RRBZRESHFFNZEEIHEIMEENES T TALAREBITHTT — RO TIEER -

Junior Achievement (JA) Workplace Immersion 2024

The LR continued its partnership with Junior Achievement Hong Kong to organise the JA Workplace
Immersion 2024 for secondary students to support their future career and life planning. In July, students
from Po Leung Kuk Laws Foundation College were guided by Land Registration Officers as their mentors to
work for one day in various work units.
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2024 Registrars of Titles Conference (ROTC) cum Canadian Council of Land Titles
Officials Conference (CCLTOC)

The Land Registrar led a delegation to attend the 2024 ROTC cum CCLTOC in Victoria, British Columbia,
Canada in October. Guest speakers shared their knowledge on hot topics such as cyber security and
application of Artificial Intelligence in land registration. Our presentation on privacy and security concerns
from Hong Kong perspective was delivered. It was an insightful event that shed light on our implementation
of the title registration system and digital services.

2024 F [ EMAL K EREZSAG S

2024 F [ L IMA LM KAREZSARCWI TOAERMERSEL T NKAFTRAREER
KORRRERXRFE 7 FRARLHEIMOARSZLE - RO RT W E2 W E - &IRA L
NEFTEHOIMRS MBI ENZITRNEXNTOMNK L L BRSHEE -

Land Registrars Development Officers’ Conference 2024

The Land Registrars Development Officers Conference 2024 was held in Tasmania, Australia in June
providing a platform for delegates from different jurisdictions to share knowledge and experience in land
registration. During the online conference, our representatives presented the LR’s up-to-date and planned
cyber security policies and measures in enhancing land registration services.

&8 + # X M4 EE & € THE LAND REGISTRY TRADING FUND HONG KONG
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Visit to the National Security Exhibition Gallery

Led by the Land Registrar, our colleagues visited the National Security Exhibition Gallery at the Hong Kong
Museum of History in October 2024, the first thematic gallery dedicated to systematic promotion of national
security education. Guided by the professional docents, our colleagues explored the six zones and valuable
exhibits in the exhibition gallery, gaining a clear and thorough understanding of the importance of national
security to social stability and economic prosperity.
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“Meet the Clients” Sessions on “Common Reasons for Withholding Instruments
from Registration”

Two “Meet the Clients” Sessions were held in November 2024 with participation from around 200
representatives of solicitors’ firms. The sessions shared the common reasons for withholding instruments
from registration, highlighted the key points for avoiding errors in preparing memorials for registration, and
included a sharing on instruments not acceptable for registration. Demonstrations on the use of the
web-based memorial form and briefings on the Property Alert service were also provided.
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| am pleased to present the report of the Land Registry Trading
Fund (LRTF) for the financial year ending 31 March 2025.

During the financial year of 2024/25, the Hong Kong property
market experienced notable fluctuations. An early market
recovery was spurred by the Government’s cancellation of
demand-side management measures in February 2024.
However, tight financial conditions and global uncertainties led
to a slowdown in the second and third quarters of 2024. By
September 2024, the situation began to stabilise following
interest rate cuts. Adjustments to the countercyclical macro-
prudential measures for property mortgage loans by the Hong
Kong Monetary Authority (HKMA) in October 2024 further
improved market sentiments. Nevertheless, the new US tariff
policies in February 2025 introduced additional uncertainties to
the global economy, affecting overall trade and investment
outlook, which in turn has dampened the local property
market.

&8 + # X M4 EZ & € THE LAND REGISTRY TRADING FUND HONG KONG
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L& B i Message from the Land Registrar

NAVIGATING FINANCIAL CHALLENGES
WHILE CONTROLLING OPERATING
EXPENSES

Amid a dynamic business environment of uncertainties, we
experienced challenges in meeting our business targets
throughout the financial year. In 2024/25, our revenue and
profit (including interest income) registered a decrease of 4.0%
to $399.4 million and 42.7% to $10.5 million respectively. It
was mainly due to an overall decrease in revenue from
registration of documents, reports on title and e-Alert services.
Consequently, the LRTF recorded a negative overall financial
return on fixed assets of -12.3% in 2024/25, falling short of the
target rate of return on fixed assets of 6% as determined by
the Financial Secretary under the Trading Funds Ordinance
(Cap. 430).

While the revenue income of the LRTF is very susceptible to
the property market condition, we responded swiftly to
tightening control over our operating expenses by reviewing
resource allocation and re-prioritising key areas. Our aim is to
deliver public services more cost-effectively by consolidating
resources such as redeployment of staff, consolidation of
accommodation space, streamlining operational processes
and harnessing technology in provision of land registration and
search services.

TRANSFORMING HONG KONG’S LAND
REGISTRATION SYSTEM

In 2024/25, significant inroads have been made over the
preparation for the legislative exercise to introduce title
registration on newly granted land (new land) first. A change
from the current deeds registration system to a Title
Registration System (TRS), which provides greater certainty in
land ownership and simplifies property transfer procedures,
will enhance the business environment and bring Hong Kong’s
land registration system in line with those currently adopted in
the Mainland and other jurisdictions.

After extensive consultations with key stakeholders, the
Registration of Titles and Land (Miscellaneous Amendments)
Bill 2025 (Amendment Bill) was finalised and introduced to the
Legislative Council (LegCo) in March 2025. This represents a
significant milestone in reforming Hong Kong’s land registration
system and marks an important step toward adopting the TRS
for new land. The Amendment Bill seeks to amend the Land
Titles Ordinance (Cap. 585) (which has yet to be brought into
operation), the Land Registration Ordinance (Cap. 128), the
LRTF (Cap. 430A) and over 70 pieces of other related
enactments.

If the Amendment Bill is passed by the LegCo by the end of
2025, we will prepare subsidiary legislation and submit to the
LegCo for vetting in 2026. We will also launch publicity and
educational activities with the industry and the public. Our

R ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25
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goal is to implement the TRS on new land in the first half
of 2027. We expect that the experience gained from
implementing the TRS for new land will facilitate consensus on
gradual expansion of the TRS to existing land.

Regarding the conversion of existing land currently registered
under the deeds registration system to the new TRS, we have
started research on possible issues in the current 2.9 million
land registers. Based on the findings, we will explore feasible
conversion arrangements in 2026 and engage stakeholders on
the conversion approach as soon as possible. The plan is to
expand the TRS to existing land progressively.

EMBRACING DIGITAL TRANSFORMATION
OF PUBLIC SERVICES

The Chief Executive’s 2024 Policy Address emphasised the
significance of digital government initiatives as a strategic
priority for Hong Kong. This forward-looking approach aims to
modernise Government operations and enhance public service
delivery, positioning Hong Kong as a leading smart city and
strengthening its global competitiveness.

The Land Registry (LR) is committed to driving innovation in
service delivery to better meet customer needs, enhance the
property market development and support digital governance.
We have launched “Tindy”, our Artificial Intelligence-driven
chatbot on the Integrated Registration Information System (IRIS)
Online Services website, to provide interactive support for land
search enquiries.

We have been collaborating with the HKMA and the Digital
Policy Office (DPO) to develop Application Programming
Interface (API) services for financial institutions. By leveraging
the secure Commercial Data Interchange of the HKMA and
Consented Data Exchange Gateway of the DPO, these
institutions can gain timely APl access to our land records and
e-Alert notifications for further charge/mortgage documents.
This initiative exemplifies our unwavering commitment to
enhancing data accessibility and operational efficiency through
strengthened collaboration between the Government and
financial services sector.

Aligned with our smart government strategy, we have
proactively adopted the “iIAM Smart” platform to enhance the
public search capabilities of the IRIS Online Services, thereby
improving user experience and information security. We have
also automated the online application process and streamlined
operations for the Property Alert service with “iAM Smart”
authentication. With a more accessible Property Alert service,
the public may better safeguard their property interest by
receiving e-alerts when an instrument is delivered for
registration against their property. To facilitate the registration
of property transactions, we are also developing electronic
lodgement for registration applications, integrating “iAM Smart”
for identity authentication and digital signatures.

&8 + # X M4 EZ & € THE LAND REGISTRY TRADING FUND HONG KONG
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L& B i Message from the Land Registrar

We will continue to dedicate ourselves to driving innovation
across our business practices and service delivery to better
serve our customers and contribute to Hong Kong’s digital
transformation.

ENHANCING PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT
THROUGH SOCIAL MEDIA AND
COLLABORATION WITH STAKEHOLDERS

To enhance public and customer engagement, we have
adopted new outreach strategies beyond conventional
communication channels. Following the successful launch of
our Facebook page and the introduction of our mascot, “Bunny
Lanny”, in August and September 2024, we have disseminated
useful information on property conveyancing and fraud
prevention to raise public awareness to safeguard their
property interests. We also make use of this channel to
educate the public about the Government’s initiative to
introduce title registration on new land first and explain how
the TRS differs from the current deeds registration system.
We also extend our efforts to collaborate with stakeholders on
public education initiatives. For example, we collaborated with
the Consumer Council, the HKMA, the Law Society of Hong
Kong and the Estate Agents Authority on a feature article in
CHOICE Magazine issued in May 2025, which provided an
overview of the procedures for purchasing second-hand
properties and offered practical tips for prospective
purchasers.

BUILDING A FUTURE TOGETHER

The Chief Executive's 2024 Policy Address highlighted a
comprehensive strategy to tackle housing challenges in Hong
Kong, focusing on increasing housing supply, enhancing
affordability and improving living conditions. In support of the
Government’s broad land and housing initiatives, the LR is
committed to providing efficient and streamlined land
registration and search services, facilitated by the deepening
of digitalisation and the rollout of the TRS.

Taking this opportunity, | would like to extend my sincere
appreciation to our customers and stakeholders for their
steadfast support throughout the past year. | would also like
to recognise our dedicated staff, whose hard work and
commitment have been the backbone for our achievement.
As we move forward with the implementation of the TRS for
new land and the digitalisation of public services, your
continued support and dedication will be essential. Let's
navigate the challenges of a dynamic business landscape and
the uncertainties that lie ahead, turning them into opportunities
for growth and success.

Ms Joyce TAM, JP

Land Registrar
General Manager, LRTF
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+ i 5F A AL 4 8 The Land Registry at a Glance

Operating on a self-financing basis under commercial
principles, the Land Registry Trading Fund (LRTF) is required
to achieve a return on the average net fixed assets employed
as agreed with the Government. The LRTF’s Annual Report
and the financial statements certified by the Director of Audit
must be tabled in the Legislative Council of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region each year.

VISION, MISSION, VALUES AND
FUNCTIONS

Our Vision

To be the best in all that we do.

Our Mission

Q To ensure secure, customer friendly land registration and
information services.

Q To develop our human resources, information technology
and service environment so as to ensure improvement in
service quality and value to our customers.

Q To advocate reform of Hong Kong’s land registration
system through introduction of land title registration
system.

Our Values

O Integrity
To customers, partners and colleagues, we observe the
highest ethical standards.

O Excellence
We aim to excel in all that we do.

O Respect
We show respect and trust to our customers, partners

and colleagues.

O Learning
We learn constantly from each other, from our partners,

customers and comparable organisations elsewhere how
to provide better services to the community.
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Our Value to Hong Kong

O
O

O

O

Over half of all Hong Kong families are registered property
owners.

Banks and financial institutions loaned about HK$3,528
billion as at March 2025 against the security of registered
land and property.

Over five million searches of registered information took
place in 2024/25.

Over 135 Government departments and agencies use
the Land Registry’s (LR’s) information for purposes
ranging from property transactions, property
management, planning studies to law enforcement.

Registered information traces back to 1844, providing
essential resources on the economic and social history of
Hong Kong.

Functions

The LR’s main functions are to:

O

administer a land registration system by maintaining a
land register and related land records under the Land
Registration Ordinance (Cap. 128) and Land Registration
Regulations (Cap. 128A);

provide the public with facilities for search of the land
register and other land records;

provide Government departments and agencies with
property information; and

process applications for incorporation of owners and
maintain a register of corporations under the Building
Management Ordinance (Cap. 344).

&8 + # X M4 EZ & € THE LAND REGISTRY TRADING FUND HONG KONG
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ORGANISATION CHART

(as at 31 March 2025)
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MANAGEMENT TEAMS N

THIEMAELERRERNESE
THE LAND REGISTRAR AND BRANCH HEADS

1 EENLZLE JP (HEMLLK) 3 FEMEEREFEREIN)

Ms Joyce TAM, JP (Land Registrar) Mr Eric LEE (Deputy Principal Solicitor)
2 REWMZE(LHFMARLIE) 4 BRERZT(ILEZLE)

(£ H B #2025F 1 H28 H) Ms Javy CHAN (Business Manager)

Ms Alice LEUNG (Registry Manager)
(With effect from 28 January 2025)
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DEEDS REGISTRATION AND DEPARTMENTAL SERVICES BRANCH

1

PEWZ L (L EMAZLIE)
(434 HE H 20251 H28H)

Ms Alice LEUNG (Registry Manager)
(With effect from 28 January 2025)

R 32 e 4 (B T HUF M AL L 12)

(£ H B R 2025461 A28 H)

Mr Benson CHAN (Deputy Registry Manager)
(With effect from 28 January 2025)

DEX Lt (Bl Ma£LIE)
Ms Delphine MA (Deputy Registry Manager)

HEELZ L (B EEWS)
(4% H B 72024469 A 26 H)

Ms Cherrie CHUNG (Departmental Secretary)
(With effect from 26 September 2024)

EFY LT (SRREEZE)
Ms Emily FOK (Senior Systems Manager)
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BEESLZT (Bl LHFMALLEE)

(3 HEI #2025 1 A2H)

Ms Carmen WONG (Deputy Registry Manager)
(With effect from 2 January 2025)

X F 2z + (Bl L EMALIER)
Ms Eva LAU (Deputy Registry Manager)

FEFLZT(BILHIMALEE)
Ms Evian WONG (Deputy Registry Manager)

ZREEE(SRREERLE)
Mr Andrew MAK (Senior Systems Manager)

REEFE (B THIEMALZLIE)

(ERM AR H2025F7/A7H)

Mr Alvin KWAN (Deputy Registry Manager)
(With effect from 7 July 2025)

WREM £ (8 T H M ZIR)
(LA B H2024F 11 F25H)

Miss Cynthia TANG (Deputy Registry Manager)
(With effect from 25 November 2024)
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ERESFH
LEGAL SERVICES BRANCH

1 ZEAEERIFEERZIM) 4
Mr Eric LEE (Deputy Principal Solicitor)

2 EMiszt(BIEERAEIN 5
(34 HH H 2025331 H)
Ms Joyce WONG (Assistant Principal Solicitor)
(With effect from 31 March 2025) 6

3 WEMEE(SREIM)
Mr Stanley HUI (Senior Solicitor) 7

M HE A (S REIM)
Mr David IP (Senior Solicitor)

Bt 89 55 & (S RAEIM)
Mr Wesley LUK (Senior Solicitor)

ZEEzE(EHREIM)
Ms Shirley LEE (Senior Solicitor)

MAm £ (S REI)
Miss Tracy LAM (Senior Solicitor)
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8 1 2
W 55 %
FINANCIAL SERVICES BRANCH
1 BRERZT(LSEIE) 8 HEXZL (BLMIMULLIE)
Ms Javy CHAN (Business Manager) Ms Ella TSOI (Deputy Registry Manager)

2 ARELzL(FLIEE)
Ms Candy HO (Deputy Business Manager)
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14 18] b SUF A Moving towards Title Registration

The present land registration system in Hong Kong is a deeds
registration system operating under the Land Registration
Ordinance (Cap. 128) (LRO), which governs the priority of
registered instruments in the land register but gives no
guarantee of title to land.

After the enactment of the Land Titles Ordinance (Cap. 585)
(LTO) in 2004, the LTO Steering Committee (LTOSC) and the
LTO Review Committee (LTORC), comprising representatives
of key stakeholders, were set up to steer and carry out the
review of the LTO before its commencement, to ensure its
smooth implementation.

The Title Registration Education Committee (TREC) was also
set up to steer and oversee the planning and implementation
of publicity and professional education programmes to pave
way for the introduction of title registration. The membership
lists of the LTOSC, LTORC and TREC are at Annexes Il (d), (e)
and (f) respectively.

While consensus on the mechanism for converting existing
land under the LRO to registered land under the LTO has yet
to be reached among key stakeholders, the Government is
actively pursuing the proposal of implementing title registration
on newly granted land first (“new land first” proposal) with
support from key stakeholders. General support from the
Legislative Council’s (LegCo) Panel on Development has also
been obtained. Generally speaking, the “new land first”
proposal covers land granted by the Government on or after
the commencement date of the LTO.

Implementation of the “new land first” proposal will facilitate
the Government and key stakeholders to further deliberate and
reach a consensus on the mechanism for conversion of
existing land at a later stage, in the light of operational
experience gained.

To this end, the Registration of Titles and Land (Miscellaneous
Amendments) Bill 2025 (Amendment Bill) was introduced into
the LegCo in March 2025. The Amendment Bill has proposed
to amend the LTO, LRO and over 70 pieces of other related
enactments.
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A LegCo Bills Committee has been formed to scrutinise the
provisions of the Amendment Bill. If the Amendment Bill is

passed by the end of 2025, title registration on new land is
expected to come into operation in the first half of 2027.
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In parallel, we have kick-started internal research to assess the
scope and types of problematic land registers in the existing 2.9
million land registers. Based on the data gathered on existing
land with title problems, the Government plans to explore
feasible conversion arrangements in 2026 and engage
stakeholders on the conversion approach as soon as possible,
with a view to expansion of the scope of LTO implementation
to existing land progressively.

At the same time, we have continued to engage key
stakeholders and industry practitioners. Meetings of LTOSC
and TREC were held in January 2025 to update key
stakeholders on the latest developments and the
implementation plan, and to seek their input on issues relating
to publicity and professional education.
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Two briefing sessions on the Amendment Bill were held in
March 2025. Around 200 representatives from various
stakeholders attended the briefings. To help industry
practitioners get familiarised with the new system, two more
briefings were held in April and May 2025 for around 450
participants from members of the Law Society of Hong Kong.
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+ #£ £ K BB & Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Land Registry (LR) highly values and strives to uphold our
commitment to social responsibility.  Our dedication is
demonstrated through our efforts across five main areas.

Supporting Charity and Voluntary Activities

Our staff are dedicated to nurturing a compassionate and
inclusive community through our active participation in charity
and voluntary activities.

In addition to our staff taking part in various charity events
organised by the Community Chest, including the Green Low
Carbon Day, Dress Casual Day and Skip Lunch Day, our
volunteer team has proactively participated in a wide variety of
voluntary services and charity activities, providing warm
support to various community groups in need.

From participating a Golf Experience Day at the Jockey Club
Kau Sai Chau Public Golf Course to co-organising a Sports
Fun Day with the Society of Boys’ Centres Chak Yan Centre
School, we have created enriching recreational opportunities
for participating children and youth.

We remain dedicated to supporting food assistance
programmes, such as preparing and distributing meal boxes
at Gingko House restaurants and collecting surplus food
donated by our staff. In collaboration with the Care teams, our
volunteers extended their outreach by visiting ethnic minority
families in Yau Tsim Mong and residents in need in Tsuen
Wan. As part of our commitment to elderly care, our
volunteers conducted home visits and distributed gift bags to
the elderly and their carers in Shek Kip Mei, Tuen Mun and Tai
Po. In addition, we provided Chinese acupressure massage
services for seniors and their carers in Kwun Tong, while
helping the elderly residents in the Southern District enhance
their e-health literacy.

We also actively participated in fundraising charity initiatives,
including charity book sales, the Life Express Charity Walk
2024, and the Po Leung Kuk Charity Walk 2025, further
reinforcing our commitment to building a caring and
harmonious society.
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Golf Experience Day for children at the Jockey Club Kau Sai
Chau Public Golf Course in May 2024.

i BB 2R 2

EREMBL L —

Land Registry Volunteer Team

A
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Blessing gift bags distribution
to residents in celebration of
the 75th Anniversary of the
Founding of the People’s

]

A

202447 AR AL FE X #) /b B e 25 SR E o Republic of China in October
Ethnic minority families visit in the Yau Tsim
Mong district in July 2024.

2024.

\') A EERE AL

Land Registry Volunteer Team

A
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Surplus food donation activity from December
2024 to January 2025.

KSR R

In Association with The Clearwater

A
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R -

Chinese acupressure massage service for the
elderly in June and September 2024.

REREZEER S 172024
Life Express Charity Walk 2024.

RHEFEZENSREEBRIE Promoting Equal Opportunities and Accessibility

BINBRERBITHSTRE  BHBEKRE We maintain a steadfast dedication to social responsibility,
FMHR - PR - KERA KRR striving to eliminate employment discrimination related to sex,
WA - HAWEHFABERINFE disability, family status and race, and actively promoting equal
M2 e opportunities for all staff members.
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In 2024/25, we had 23 staff members with disabilities,
representing 5% of the total strength of the LR. We provided
necessary technical aids to support staff members with
disabilities in performing their duties.

We are also committed to providing barrier-free facilities for
members of the public. Designated Access Officers and
Assistant Access Officers are available to offer assistance to
people in need. Regular reviews were conducted to ensure
the accessibility of our facilities, and seminars and training
were arranged for our Access Officers, Assistant Access
Officers and venue-based staff members periodically. In
February 2025, we organised for our staff an experience
sharing session by a non-government organisation, where
persons with different types of impairment shared their
experiences and/or difficulties in their daily life, so as to
enhance our staff's awareness and understanding of the
needs of persons with disabilities.

NEHBANNFERE > FEEL 2R
FSHR2EBBNLTEHERTEE
1OME S RSP OIATEEST A
ECL/ NMEE] XNMNATRE
TEMNBEODNAINTRAE—TNE
BB IF IR

fE2024 %  BAIHKESENEAESH
BHIAKRFERITLY] RERFE
ATREFUEIONS - HANVHKR
HEO 67 3K 5 A A B A M BB 17 Ak 55 2R A
SRR TAE - AEPITRMH —RAITTIR
MXPXE FAXIERHARRS
Ui LA 42 4H 0@ B B9 1 Bh A0 23R - DA 4R
T3R8 TR A T4 -

BAVRI BB 2 Bl s 5FRALL
NRENBERSEL) NHBHLE
REEZH LS -

Given our continuous efforts, the Hong Kong Council of Social
Service has included our Customer Centre on 19/F of the
Queensway Government Offices (QGO) in the List of Barrier-
free Companies/Organisations. This recognition highlights our
continued dedication to creating an inclusive and
accommodating environment for our staff and members of the
public.

We continued to provide placement opportunities for people in
need through participating in the Civil Service Bureau's
Internship Scheme for Students with Disabilities in 2024. Four
interns were recruited to help in the Search and Departmental
Services Division and General Support Services Division to
provide general administrative and clerical support to the
offices. Experienced mentors were designated to provide
prompt assistance and support to the interns to facilitate them
in carrying out the assigned tasks.

To provide more job opportunities for the socially
disadvantaged groups, we took a proactive step by inviting
social enterprises to participate in bidding our office cleansing
service contracts.
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Upholding Occupational Health Care for Employees

We attach great importance to the occupational safety and
health of our employees. We set up a departmental Safety
Management Committee to formulate and implement
departmental policy on occupational safety and health. We
have established thorough guidelines and procedures on
occupational safety and equipped our staff with ergonomic
office furniture and equipment to promote occupational health.
Besides, routine inspections are conducted to ensure that the
workplace remains free from safety hazards.

In 2024/25, a total of 36 seminars/workshops on subjects
such as health hints on the use of computer, prevention of
upper and lower limb disorders, prevention of Musculoskeletal
Disorders, occupational stress and stress management were
provided to our staff. We also offered counselling services
through external specialists to support staff in addressing their
work-related or personal issues, demonstrating our
commitment to safeguarding the comprehensive well-being of
our employees.

To maintain staff's awareness of work safety, mental well-
being and physical fitness, we regularly share valuable
information and tips through our e-Staff Magazine. The Staff
Recreation Club also promotes physical fitness and well-being
by subsidising staff’s participation in sports activities such as
the Construction Industry Happy Run 2025 organised by the
Construction Industry Council and the Standard Chartered
Hong Kong Marathon 2025.

V,

In line with our commitment to providing a comfortable and
safe workplace, we continued our efforts in 2024/25 to sustain
a pleasant office environment by adding greenery elements
and carrying out necessary fitting out work.

In addition, since 2003, we have participated in the Indoor Air
Quality Certification Scheme organised by the Environmental
Protection Department. In 2024, our office at One Kowloon,
Kowloon Bay obtained the “Excellent” Class, while all other
offices attained the “Good” Class. To create a breastfeeding
friendly environment, we made available lactation facilities for
female staff members who wish to continue breastfeeding
upon returning from maternity leave.
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Thriving for Team Work

Staff resources are a valuable asset to us. To encourage
effective  communication and collaboration between
management and staff, Departmental Consultative Committee
meetings are held about once every quarter. This facilitates
open discussions on various matters affecting the well-being
of our staff. Besides, the LR Staff Suggestions Committee
provides an effective avenue for all staff to submit suggestions
which aimed at streamlining operations and enhancing work
efficiency within the department. The collaborative team
efforts lead to enhancement in productivity.

In addition, the LR maintains a Knowledge Management
System to facilitate systematic management and sharing of
knowledge across the department. With over 10,000
documents comprising sample cases, reference and training
materials for various services contained in the database, the
system serves as a comprehensive and easily accessible tool
for our staff to use in enhancing their work effectiveness in
daily operation.

Our Performance Incentive Scheme is designed to motivate
employees, inculcate a customer service culture and boost
productivity. A Best Frontline Staff Award is also established
to commend the exemplary performance of our frontline staff.

Sustaining Environmental Awareness

To continuously promote green management and ensure that
our business and daily operations are conducted in an
environmentally responsible manner, we have implemented
the following measures:

o set out a clear environmental policy with key areas for
actions;

promulgated green housekeeping guidelines;

conducted regular environmental audit and surprise
inspections at our offices;

o OO0

continued our drive in 4-Rs (i.e. reduce, reuse, recycle
and replace) and efficient use of energy and resources;

adopted green procurement and required the adoption of
environment conservation practices by office cleaning
contractor;

promoted environmental awareness among staff through
regular internal communication;

reduced and recycled the use of paper as far as
practicable;

installed lighting motion sensors in office premises;

o O 0 0 O

incorporated the greening concept in office design;
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O L2HATBINBEFRERETR L¥ prepared to implement the Government’s Electronic

8 B ALAEE FREREAR KA Record Keeping System to introduce filing of electronic
EJEOVER =y W) 3 records, instead of paper-based records; and
O BefuR BrRARN S £¥ continued to explore ways to reduce paper consumption
R BPEAEAEFRIAFAAX 7 as a whole through developing electronic submission
BEREAEARMNORS - flaA means to facilitate customers in acquiring our services,
BFARNBRFMEBBERERS such as e-lodgement and e-memorial form, and
TAMBERSE  HEAEEANAB streamlining workflows in our daily operation.
BEENIERE-
B E AR RINR R I AC2024F B The Controlling Officer's Environmental Report 2024 with
#il A BNMR IR &) A 1R 4 H)F A AL B detailed environmental performance is available on the LR'’s
Do Si ) B o website. -
il Ea CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
EREM Governance Framework
RACARZR - RE RERE AEA The LR strives to achieve the best in corporate governance.
BAHERRS A E S IR EBRE We have established performance standards on accountability,
Byl E R K o integrity and transparency.
[|] 3% Accountability
KA Bl A & R BAN & F 5 Kk E The LR is accountable to the Development Bureau and the
SRR ROLIRER A b 5 A1 55 5% Financial Services and the Treasury Bureau for its business
WeBMNBESAANARBERF and financial performance respectively. A medium range
B it R BFEFE ST At corporate-cum-annual business plan is submitted to the two
% o 1l T RIAT & AN AR A F#) & Bureaux for approval every year. The corporate plan sets out
& ol 55 1 S ) 4 D9 1 A AR gk the blueprint for the department’s development in the next five
BFEULEEE- years, while the business plan serves as the basis for
evaluating our annual performance.
15 Integrity
BIBECEZEE 2 K0)(F430E) - K Under the Trading Funds Ordinance (Cap. 430) (TFO), we have
WA BEHTARAR R R EZARIR the flexibility to respond to service needs and enhance
UREEBNERFSFEREESEER operational efficiency through autonomy in capital investment
o fEREBEMEMT - HATHAT and the use of resources. Underpinning this flexibility is the
NS MBITRTHENTE - i duty to uphold integrity in discharging our responsibilities. LR
EMAAL 2R AR MESTFE TSI R staff conduct daily business in a proper manner in compliance
MEAWBEANME - LAZEEBT with departmental guidelines and the relevant Government
HEIR - THEMARLIEZ AL rules and regulations. The Registry Manager acts as the
MEFSTE ML ETNBE Ethics Officer of the LR, overseeing integrity management of
EBET AUABANALEDEXD the department. In addition to organising training courses and
BUNRELRIESGIN ToEHRAT workshops, relevant guidelines and circulars on integrity
RELRABRBEEENES @S - management are promulgated and re-circulated to staff
DRARTNBEEEMNINA - H1E regularly to enhance awareness and promote ethical conduct.
HIBEIRST o
ERE Transparency
RAFETUNSEAEEENRN R The LR’s operation is guided by the principle of transparency.
BCEEESFRMN) BRINBFNER As provided under the TFO, the Trading Fund’s annual report
EZESHNFRERNLFITIEZERT together with the financial statements audited by the Director
BHOWM SR TULE2E R RiER of Audit is required to be tabled in the Legislative Council each
ANl S ANl T35 BB year. To help keep the public apprised of our work and the
BINEBALARTHIMMEMN S situation in the property market, we publish statistics on land
TTEE - registration and search on a monthly basis.
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Performance Pledges

As part of our continuing commitment to improving the quality
and efficiency of services, we have reviewed our performance
pledges annually since the establishment of the Trading Fund
in 1993.

In 2024/25, we exceeded all the targets set in our performance
pledges. In particular, we improved the service standard (from
30 to 25 working days) and performance target (from 90% to
95%) for registration of owners’ corporations. Annex | (a) sets
out the pledges and our actual performance for the year.

In the coming year, we will continue to enhance the service
standard and performance target for registration of owners’
corporations and dedicate effort to improve our performance
target on amendment of registered data (complicated case).
The new set of performance pledges for 2025/26 is at Annex | (b).

Customer Engagement

Efficient Customer Support Services

We strive for excellence and professionalism in customer
service delivery. To foster a customer-oriented culture in
service delivery, we provide interactive customer support
services through various channels such as a round-the-clock
customer service hotline in collaboration with 1823, managed
by Digital Policy Office, as well as a dedicated one-stop
customer service counter at our Customer Centre at the QGO,
along with service points at the New Territories Search Offices
in Tai Po, Yuen Long and Tsuen Wan.

Dedicated Customer Liaison Platforms

We also maintain close liaison with our business partners,
including the Law Society of Hong Kong, as well as other
private and public sector customers, to collect their views on
our services through dedicated customer liaison platforms.

The long-established LR Joint Standing Committee (LRJSC),
comprising the Land Registrar, the senior management team
and representatives of the Law Society of Hong Kong, meets
regularly to discuss and exchange views on land registration
matters and our services provided to legal practitioners.

T T AL ER S
LR Joint Standing Committee

S
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The LR also maintains two Customer Liaison Groups (CLGS)
for private and public sectors to update customers on the
department’s latest initiatives, services and procedures, to
facilitate exchange of views on operational and service delivery
issues, and to respond to customers’ feedback. The private
sector group comprises representatives from the legal
community, professional bodies and trade associations while
the public sector group comprises representatives from the
Government departments and public bodies.

=

+ ¥ kR
THE LA™~ REC "'RY

-
&AJ :

i‘ =

The membership lists of the LRJSC and CLGs are at Annexes
Il (@), (b) and (c) respectively.

Recognised Customer Feedback

We appreciate customer feedback and consistently engage
with customers through multiple channels to secure the
delivery of quality service. In 2024/25, we continued to
achieve a high customer satisfaction rate, with “Very Satisfied”
and “Satisfied” ratings on comment cards totalling 95.7%. 57
commendations were received through our customer service
hotline, the LR’s website, comment cards, letters and emails
to recognise our efforts in upholding service quality.

&8 + # X M4 EZ & € THE LAND REGISTRY TRADING FUND HONG KONG
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ERREEE

CUSTOMER SATISFACTION RATE

At
Per Cent
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80
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40 -
20
0
2022/23
@ = Q=
Very Satisfied Satisfied

E BTIEEAAIXREZ  MRIBAENED XY

5.4 18
0.90.9 1. EE
2023/24 2024/25 Year
@ @ ~H=E [ ER¥Sr7=
Average Dissatisfied Very Dissatisfied

FE AT RETE T 100% ©

Note: Figures in percentage for individual items may not add up to 100% due to rounding.
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Customer-oriented Complaint Management System

We maintain a robust complaint management system for
public scrutiny and addressing complaints. 15 complaints
were received by us directly or through referrals from other
Government offices. All relevant complaints were promptly
addressed and fully responded to.

Stronger Customer Connection through Social Media
and Mascot

The LR launched an official Facebook page in August 2024 in
celebration of the 31st Anniversary of the Land Registry
Trading Fund. The page aims to share information of our
services and recent updates with our customers and members
of the public. It also serves as a channel of public education
to provide basic knowledge about the property conveyancing
process, disseminate anti-fraud messages and introduce
concepts underlying the title registration system to

& be implemented.

The LR’s mascot “Bunny Lanny” [ H % % |, born on

the Mid-autumn Festival in September 2024, is also

our pioneer in outreach to the community and

communication with the public. The Chinese name of

our mascot carries the characters of [H] and [ &,

which phonetically resembles the LR’s informal name of [ B £ T |
that many people are familiar with.
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REGISTRATION OF LAND DOCUMENTS

Documents affecting land are delivered to our Customer
Centre at the Queensway Government Offices (QGO) for
registration.

In 2024/25, 373,966 land documents were delivered for
registration, representing an increase of 2.7% when compared
with 2023/24.

ERXEMOH LM XHFNE
NO. OF LAND DOCUMENTS DELIVERED FOR REGISTRATION
=]
No.
600,000
531,475
500,000
449,266
416,673
400,000 364,265 373,966
300,000 |-
200,000 |
100,000 [
0 FE
2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 Year

FRWB T EXHFRFBREEF K
AN HILRY BB PR
BB A S FRIIXHE LR
#73.6% °

Major types of documents received included sale and
purchase agreements (SPAs), assignments, mortgages/legal
charges and receipts/discharges/releases which collectively
accounted for 73.6% of all documents received during the
year.
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2024/25 £ B 1% 3T 7 At ) - 3 3T £ 2% 31
DISTRIBUTION OF LAND DOCUMENTS LODGED FOR REGISTRATION IN 2024/25

D) Hith
Leases/Tenancy Agreements Others

3,217 (0.8%) 95,735 (25.6%)

&8/ %ﬂ;ﬂé‘]

Mortgages/Legal Charges Assignments

55,663 (14.9%) 90,020 (24.1%)

XREH

BRI, Sale and Purchase Agreements

Receipts/Discharges/Releases

(0}
55,674 (14.9%) 73,657 (19.7%)

E2024/25¢ EERREMB A ZEF Among the SPAs of all building units delivered for registration

FENR  FEEFEZEGHINT in 2024/25, the number of SPAs of residential units and their
?& ﬂl BAE D B 25546910 (1R = F 1% total consideration were 55,469 (+43% from previous year)
h143%) K. 4,659.771Z 7T (8 % & 1 0 and $465,977 million (+34.6% from previous year) respectively.
34.6%)c —MME  XEENNWE The number of these agreements is generally regarded as a
ERBOUITZIIEBEIANEE key indicator of the level of activity in the property market.
RN

EXIMNEERFIZSHRUMNEE

NO. AND CONSIDERATION OF SALE AND PURCHASE AGREEMENTS OF
RESIDENTIAL UNITS DELIVERED FOR REGISTRATION

_ 667,700
700,000 627,313
600,000
500,000 |- 465,977
400,000 346,220
300,000 -
200,000
100,000 - 67:07 66,222 49,017 38,802 55,469
e —— o —©
2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 Year
Py =¥ ® S (BABT)
No. Consideration (HK$ million)

A ERSGUBFHIEEEEEERE AANMSEEEREEEHES
BmEIEIEEMN -

Note: The statistics do not include sales of units under the Home Ownership Scheme, the Private Sector Participation Scheme and the
Tenants Purchase Scheme, etc. unless the premium of the unit concerned has been paid after the sale restriction period.

TR THEERE  RIFE X B &SRS
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1E2024/25F F * REHEFEHEFHIR  The majority of the transactions in residential units in 2024/25
S MENF5007 £1,000 5 T2 fell within the consideration range of five to ten million Hong

B e FRARH &M F30075 E£5007 Kong dollars. There was a notable increase in transactions
BILZENTEEFRSHEEEMN - with consideration of three to five million Hong Kong dollars in
2024/25.

BReEflioRHEERTFEESHRY

NO. OF SALE AND PURCHASE AGREEMENTS OF
RESIDENTIAL UNITS BY RANGE OF CONSIDERATION

No.

30,000

25,000

20,000

15,000

10,000

5,000

LT 120F2 2%/ F3 3ELF5 520F10 10E0F20 20%/0F30 3080 E
Less than 1 1to less than 2 2toless than 3 3toless than 5 5tolessthan 10 10tolessthan20 20 to less than 30 30 or over

s (BHEIT) Range of Consideration (HKS$ million)

. 2022/23 @ 202324 @ 2024/25

WMo R
Range of Consideration 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25
(BB
(HK$ million) =~ £ No. % R ZNo. VAl = #No.
> FA1 Less than 1 221 0.5 201 0.5 254
K" > F2 1 to less than 2 786 1.6 699 1.8 1,162
2% " >+ 3 2 toless than 3 1,395 2.8 2,343 6.1 5,072
E " >F5 3 toless than 5 11,185 22.8 10,835 27.9 17,227
E" >F10 5 to less than 10 26,254 53.6 18,122 46.7 21,909
OED " F20 10 to less than 20 7,261 14.8 4,856 12.5 6,901
7: " >+ 30 20 to less than 30 947 1.9 853 2.2 1,338
30 _JZ J«/{ + 30 or over 968 2.0 893 2.3 1,606
B Total 49,017 100.0 38,802 100.0 55,469

A BATIEERAIXRF  AFIMAENBESXRFEMATE TS T100% -
Note: Figures in percentage for individual items may not add up to 100% due to rounding.
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ERLtiLRRS

THOI ML FF LT BRI
EWEmEBEIEFR LS A
NIRH A 518 B E + = R A
AL B T3 OE e

E2024/25F € - BRI L EIEME
THCOARBEHIHLFHNZEAE
Bl AMEEAN LB AN
5,048,587 R (R A F #HM2.2%) &
682,464 17 (R EF B 2.6%) °

SEARCH SERVICES

Land records are kept by the Land Registry (LR) to prevent
secret and fraudulent conveyances, and to provide means
whereby the title to real and immovable property may be easily
traced and ascertained.

In 2024/25, the total number of searches of land registers and
supply of imaged copies and photocopies of land records
were 5,048,587 (+2.2% from previous year) and 682,464
(-2.6% from previous year) respectively.

ERtEiIMRANMRBEHIHEROEERERNFTREDEHEA

NO. OF SEARCHES OF LAND REGISTERS AND IMAGED COPIES AND
PHOTOCOPIES OF LAND RECORDS SUPPLIED

B
No.
7,000,000 6,042,078
5,792,636 '@ 5,498,956
6,000,000 y y
4,939,798 5,048,587
5,000,000
4,000,000
3,000,000
2,000,000
805,550 920,408 822,229 700,594 682,464
1,000,000 | ® —@— ® ® ®
L L L L J ﬂEE
2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 Year
o BB O TRt 4 i 48 S B AL FR Bl AR R s EAR

Searches of Land Registers

RABE S ZEEMERMNES M R
% (www.iris.gov.hk) B B 8 F & - 12
BRITHWLFEFHRS - FMN - 5%
BRI HWEIEREEIIN EREHE -
DALTANELERFREBILAF &
DHITEM o F£2024/25F F - B IL A
PEM A *£HE1,5381 Kifi T4
HERRAEENEARSF L UK
i F R - TEARE S W A EM
DR BB EMRS -

Imaged Copies and Photocopies of Land Records Supplied

Our Integrated Registration Information System (IRIS) Online
Services at www.iris.gov.hk is a user-friendly and convenient
platform for online search of land records. 95% of searches of
land registers in the year of 2024/25 were conducted online.
The public can conduct searches on either an ad hoc or a
subscription basis. The number of subscribers reached 1,538
during 2024/25. Counter search service is available at our
Customer Centre at the QGO and the New Territories Search
Offices in Tai Po, Yuen Long and Tsuen Wan.
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NO. OF SEARCHES OF LAND REGISTERS

EMMFRE
No. of Searches

7,000,000 —

5.702.636 6,042,078
6,000,000 - 5,498,956
4,939,798 5,048,587
5,000,000 - 5 556,111 5,756,452
5,173,132
4,000,000 |- 4,780,157
4,651,403
3,000,000
2,000,000
1,000,000 |- 236,925 285,626 325,824 288,395 268,430
0 ’7 1 . 1 .7 1 . 1 ‘. ) qEJE
2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 Year
o B S O ™ =& A o 2
Counter searches Online searches Total

AU FBFHSHEH(EERS ) R
R B i W R) (IR ER)) - A
BARATER L FE o ARA[FE
R G Y v 5% 5% 7”meiﬂﬂm1ﬂ§%d
MERSMILABIELS 2R NK
<</fL§’<%|>>)>72<<X—JLEﬁi§>>E’]HﬁH& o B\
20253 A31H  £2024% 4 H30
B#ELHNEERS)) RIRERIM T
AR S 15 8 11 27,500 3 53 AKX °

A ¥ 37 AR RS

BZWE”J RBR L EBIEGE
RYEBREO)(E344F )zl F 37
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%o E2024/25¢F§ ‘ %ﬁ;‘zﬂﬂa@mfﬁ

;;fl £ F1201 By F 7
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The LR publishes the Street Index (Sl) and the New Territories
Lot/Address Cross Reference Table (CRT) annually to facilitate
search of land records. Online versions of the Sl and the CRT
are available for free browsing on the LR’s website or through
the hyperlink on the IRIS Online Services website. As at 31
March 2025, over 27,500 visits to the online versions of the SI
and the CRT released on 30 April 2024 were recorded.

OWNERS’ CORPORATION SERVICES

It has been the Government’s policy to encourage owners to
form Owners’ Corporations (OCs) for better building
management under the Building Management Ordinance (Cap.
344) (BMO). Under the BMO, the LR is responsible for
registration of OCs and provision of filing and search services
for OC records. In 2024/25, 120 new OCs were registered,
bringing the total number of OCs to 11,574. During the same
period, 21,567 OC documents were filed and 22,602 OC
documents were searched.
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Banners displayed at the prominent Government
venues.

PROPERTY ALERT

Launched in January 2019, Property Alert is a subscription
service that assists property owners in safeguarding their land
interests from fraud by monitoring the land registers of their
properties. Subscribers receive an email notification and Short
Message Service (SMS) reminder when an instrument is
delivered for registration against their property.

The LR participated in the SMS Sender Registration Scheme
in June 2024 launched by the Office of the Communications
Authority. All SMS reminders sent by the LR upon issuance of
Property Alert notifications would be sent to subscribers’
designated Hong Kong mobile phone number under the
Registered SMS Sender ID “#LandReg”, thereby enhancing
protection against fraudulent SMS.

During 2024/25, over 94% of subscription orders received
were for one-off subscription enabling the alert service for a
property to remain valid until change of ownership. To
enhance the payment convenience, an additional payment
method via the Faster Payment System (FPS) was introduced
in June 2024. To automate the internal processing of
applications, the LR implemented e-processing for online
applications authenticated through iAM Smart in October
2024. The proportion of applications for subscription of
Property Alert services submitted via iAM Smart increased
from 28% in 2023/24 to 33.5% in 2024/25. We will continue
to enhance the service as part of the digital government
initiative.

To sustain the momentum of publicity, we continued to promote
the service through various channels, including the social
media platforms, to raise public awareness of the Property
Alert service.

NSRS
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Various service briefing sessions delivered to different stakeholders.
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E-ALERT SERVICE FOR AUTHORIZED
INSTITUTIONS

The LR launched the e-Alert Service for Authorized Institutions
(Als) (i.e. licensed banks, restricted licence banks and deposit-
taking companies) under the Banking Ordinance (Cap. 155) in
February 2017. This service aims to help the Als better
manage credit risks in mortgage lending. With consent from
the property owners, the Als can subscribe to the service and
receive notifications from the LR when further charge/
mortgage documents in respect of the properties mortgaged
to the Als are lodged for registration with the LR. The service
has been well received by the Als.

Following the full implementation of the e-Channel in February
2021, the Als can enjoy online application submissions with
greater security and convenience. As part of our ongoing
service enhancement, the LR launched the Application
Programming Interface (API) service for the Als as an additional
means to receive e-Alert notifications.

NEW E-GOVERNMENT INITIATIVES

The LR fully supports exploring new technology and
developing new generation of e-Government services.

Integrated Registration Information System

The Integrated Registration Information System (IRIS) Online
Services is a one-stop electronic service platform providing
search services for land records.

The LR implemented the following major enhancements to the
IRIS Online Services in 2024/25:

Q introduced FPS payment option;

Q provided an online pop-up survey to collect customer
feedback on our services; and

O introduced a new feature for masking the personal
identification document numbers of searchers to enhance
protection of personal data privacy.

Drive towards Digitalisation

As stated in the Chief Executive’s 2024 Policy Address, the
Government will advance the digitalisation of its services by
utilising Artificial Intelligence (Al) and increasing the openness
and sharing of government data with a view to expediting the
growth of the digital economy.
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The LR has been proactively driving innovation in service
delivery to meet customer needs and support
Need Help? | digital government initiatives. To enhance
N customer service with interactive support for
searchers, our Chatbot “Tindy” was introduced to
the IRIS Online Services website to answer general
enquiries on land search service by using Al
technology in April 2025.

The LR has also been collaborating with the Hong Kong
Monetary Authority (HKMA) and the Digital Policy Office (DPO)
to develop API services for Als under the Banking Ordinance
(Cap. 155) through the secure digital gateway of the
Commercial Data Interchange (CDI) of the HKMA and the
Consented Data Exchange Gateway (CDEG) of the DPO,
which were launched in March and April 2025. By connecting
to the LR via the CDI-CDEG linkage and API, Als may access
e-Alert notifications for further charge/mortgage documents
and search land and ownership information respectively. This
initiative demonstrates our commitment to enhancing data
accessibility and increasing efficiency between the Government
and financial sector. We will continue to keep in view Als’
feedback to identify room for service enhancements.
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The API service was partnered with the HKMA, the Hong Kong Association of Banks and the banking industry and jointly spearheaded
through a Task Force. A Task Force Meeting was held in March 2025 to prepare for the service launch.
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The Consolidated Annual Open Data Plan

The annual open data plan of the LR sets out datasets relating
to statistics of registration and search services. These
datasets are made available for free public use through the
Open Data Portal. The annual spatial data plan provides geo-
tagged datasets along with metadata documents and data
specifications in open and machine-readable formats. The
datasets provide useful materials for technology research and
innovation. The consolidated open data plan and spatial data
plan for 2025-2027 is available on the LR’s website for public
access.
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Tt B & ¥ Financial Management

FINANCIAL OBJECTIVES

In accordance with the Trading Funds Ordinance (Cap. 430),
the Land Registry Trading Fund (LRTF) pursues clearly defined
financial objectives as follows:

O meeting expenses incurred in the provision of services to
the public and Government departments out of the
income of the trading fund, taking one year with another;
and

O achieving a reasonable return, as determined by the
Financial Secretary, on the fixed assets employed.

ACTUAL PERFORMANCE

In comparison to 2023/24, revenue for the latest period
decreased by $16.5 million (-4.0%) to $399.4 million, mainly
due to decline in revenue from registration of documents,
reports on title and e-Alert services. Operating costs
decreased by $8.6 million (-1.9%) to $443.5 million, primarily
due to a decrease in depreciation and amortisation as well as
general operating expenses.

WA W % H

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
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2024/25F R W\ 53 #h
ANALYSIS OF REVENUE 2024/25

Bt ;
Othore HEISER

4.40/0 documents
~ 33.6%
BFRRRS
e-Alert services
4.6% IR HEIA
Copying
o 20.1%
Owners’ corporation
services
6.6%
WA IR & =it
Reports on title Search
10.8% 19.9%
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2024/25F BB ER & 9 h
ANALYSIS OF OPERATING COSTS 2024/25
RI%A
Staff costs
AeRARHRA 75.5%
Rental and

related charges

4.2%

— R REMEA
General operating expenses
and other costs

4.7%

#rIA K # 46
Depreciation and
amortisation

5.7%

B8 AR 55 7T %
Computer service charges

9.9%

RS2 FORECAST

THOEM A E EE S RATEE ® The LRTF’s revenue and return on fixed assets depend mainly
FRREFZEORTEM &M 1R on the business volume of registration, search, copying,
HEAR R ERS KB TR TR reports on title and e-Alert services, which is subject to
SHPE MEXBESXIY LT performance of the property market and other relevant factors.
MEMBRARZMW RS %S We will continue to exercise strict control on costs.

FEAZ IR BN ©
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Audit Commission
The Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Legislative Council

Opinion

| certify that | have examined and audited the financial
statements of the Land Registry Trading Fund set out on
pages 53 to 85, which comprise the statement of financial
position as at 31 March 2025, and the statement of
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the financial statements, including material accounting policy
information.

In my opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Land Registry Trading Fund as at
31 March 2025, and of its results of operations and cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with HKFRS Accounting
Standards as issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the manner provided in section 7(4) of the
Trading Funds Ordinance (Cap. 430).

Basis for opinion

| conducted my audit in accordance with section 7(5) of the
Trading Funds Ordinance and the Audit Commission auditing
standards. My responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit
of the financial statements section of my report. | am
independent of the Land Registry Trading Fund in accordance
with those standards, and | have fulfilled my other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with those standards. | believe
that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.

Other information

The General Manager, Land Registry Trading Fund is
responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises all the information included in the Land Registry
Trading Fund’s 2024-25 Annual Report, other than the
financial statements and my auditor’s report thereon.

My opinion on the financial statements does not cover the
other information and | do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.
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T & Z K IR % Report of the Director of Audit

In connection with my audit of the financial statements, my
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or my knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work | have performed, | conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, |
am required to report that fact. | have nothing to report in this
regard.

Responsibilities of the General Manager, Land
Registry Trading Fund for the financial statements

The General Manager, Land Registry Trading Fund is
responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRS Accounting
Standards as issued by the HKICPA and section 7(4) of the
Trading Funds Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
General Manager, Land Registry Trading Fund determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the General Manager,
Land Registry Trading Fund is responsible for assessing the
Land Registry Trading Fund’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with the Audit
Commission auditing standards will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with the Audit Commission
auditing standards, | exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. | also:

— identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control;

—  obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Land
Registry Trading Fund’s internal control;

—  evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the General Manager, Land
Registry Trading Fund;

— conclude on the appropriateness of the General
Manager, Land Registry Trading Fund’s use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Land Registry Trading Fund’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If | conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, | am required to draw attention in my
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify my opinion. My conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of my auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Land Registry Trading Fund to cease to continue as a
going concern; and

—  evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.
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T & Z K IR % Report of the Director of Audit

| communicate with the General Manager, Land Registry
Trading Fund regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that |
identify during my audit.

Terry Mok
Assistant Director of Audit
for Director of Audit

Audit Commission

6th Floor, High Block
Queensway Government Offices
66 Queensway, Hong Kong

22 September 2025
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£ H W@ xR
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

BE _E_RAF=A=1+—HIFE for the year ended 31 March 2025

(LA™ T i d)R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

BE

Note 2025 2024
KBEEFEYZW AN  Revenue from contracts with customers 4 399,452 415,929
= B AR Operating costs 5 (443,453) (452,023)
EESH Loss from operations (44,001) (36,094)
H I A Other income 6 54,493 54,398
FEEZA Profit for the year 10,492 18,304
e STy Other comprehensive income - -
FELLEWE Total comprehensive income for the year 10,492 18,304
B E %= E R = Rate of return on fixed assets 7 -12.3% -10.5%

FEH9EBSTIHIM T NAM SIMEN —& 5 -
The notes on pages 59 to 85 form part of these financial statements.
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W 55RO 3R
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

F-=E—FF#=A=+—H as at 31 March 2025
(LAE T F i3 r) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
B E
Note 2025 2024
EFRE~ Non-current assets
Yol - 1% & M ES M Property, plant and equipment 8 270,423 274,800
158 B A& 7= Right-of-use assets 9(a) 7,457 11,511
TR~ Intangible assets 10 94,890 77,393
INCEES TR Placement with the Exchange Fund 11 1,114,660 1,074,889
1,487,430 1,438,593
MBRTE Current assets
N Uik 3k K B4 S U Trade and other receivables
I 12, 13() 29,073 30,615
Rz U o< A o BK R Amounts due from related parties 13(a) 10,783 9,756
RITTFE A Bank deposits 195,000 266,000
e hBETER Cash and bank balances 12,457 13,179
247,313 319,550
T zh R Current liabilities
13 FE W A Deferred revenue 13(b) 8,811 8,571
XERZRe Customers’ deposits 14 53,874 53,750
RIS K FR & E At 5 {5 Trade and other payables
I 14,557 14,482
RIS % E AR Amounts due to related parties 4,115 4,546
5T R Lease liabilities 9(b) 3,173 3,359
B AEM%E Provision for employee benefits 15 14,678 16,131
99,208 100,839
RN EF= R Net current assets 148,105 218,711
BRERMERSAME Total assets less current liabilities 1,635,535 1,657,304

E59EBSTIHIM T N AWM SIREB —F 5 o
The notes on pages 59 to 85 form part of these financial statements.
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W& IR00 R (£2) Statement of Financial Position (continued)

B E
Note 2025 2024
R R Non-current liabilities
13 JE A Deferred revenue 13(b) 12,975 12,459
HENGE Lease liabilities 9(b) 4,595 8,544
B REAiL S Provision for employee benefits 15 43,510 51,620
61,080 72,623
BEAT NET ASSETS 1,574,455 1,584,681
BRAEARMEZ CAPITAL AND RESERVES
EEEETRAARN Trading fund capital 16 118,300 118,300
RE BT Retained earnings 17 1,456,155 1,466,381
1,574,455 1,584,681
EEMZLE  JP Ms Joyce TAM, JP
THOEMALEZES BRE General Manager, Land Registry Trading Fund
—E-RAFNAA=-+Z=H 22 September 2025

FEH9EBSTIHIM T NAM SIMEN —F 5 -
The notes on pages 59 to 85 form part of these financial statements.
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&R R E
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HE _E_RAF=A=1+—HILFE for the year ended 31 March 2025

(LAE T F i3 r) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

B x

Note 2025 2024
EF PSR Balance at beginning of year 1,584,681 1,586,628
FELS @K Total comprehensive income for the year 10,492 18,304
B V% 7 [+ Statutory return to the Government 17 (20,718) (20,251)
EFANER Balance at end of year 1,574,455 1,584,681

E59EBSTIHIM T N AWM SIREB —F 5 o
The notes on pages 59 to 85 form part of these financial statements.
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NERER
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

BHE _E_RAF=A=1+—HIFE for the year ended 31 March 2025

(LA™ T i %) R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
2025 2024
EEINANERE Cash flows from operating activities
= 1ES Loss from operations (44,001) (36,094)
- Adjustments for:
I7 18 K B £ Depreciation and amortisation 25,291 31,009
MEAGRHNE X Interest expense on lease liabilities 305 218
WED - &R KM Gain on disposals of property, plant and
2 F equipment - (5)
R UCERI & B MR A (Increase)/Decrease in receivables and
i K A9 (2 00), R > amounts due from related parties (1,848) 6,125
58 FE U A HY 32 0, OR ) Increase/(Decrease) in deferred revenue 756 (1,778)
BFREESME N ORD) Increase/(Decrease) in customers’
deposits 124 672)
NSRRI R <% AT Increase in payables and amounts due to
K % B9 38 A related parties 693 3,140
2 RAR M K = By R > Decrease in provision for employee
benefits (9,563) (8,795)
ATEZEHNINE 28 Net cash used in operating activities (28,243) (6,852)

FEH9EBSTIHIM T NAM SIMEN —F 5 -
The notes on pages 59 to 85 form part of these financial statements.
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MEimEKR (L) Statement of Cash Flows (continued)

Bt E
Note 2025 2024
REZFHHWIEHRE Cash flows from investing activities
JRB HIR A3 A Decrease in bank deposits with original
A ERERITIR K maturities over three months
R D 71,000 156,000
M2l 18T K& Purchase of property, plant and
a5 M AT 5 equipment, and intangible assets (36,104) (42,147)
EEDIL - EE R Proceeds from disposals of property,
BTG plant and equipment - 5
SNCE S FERE Increase in placement with the Exchange
ot Fund (39,771) (166,433)
2 WA Interest received 56,856 53,790
RXREBRBENWIE Net cash from investing activities
A 51,981 1,215
FESEDNHNIELMRE Cash flows from financing activities
EMBRAERMR  Statutory return paid to the Government (20,718) (20,251)
SRR AGR Payments of lease liabilities 9(b) (3,742) (3,840)
ATREEHN Net cash used in financing activities
M&EAEMm (24,460) (24,091)
NeRERNEN Net decrease in cash and cash
> 4 AR equivalents (722) (29,728)
EFONIER Cash and cash equivalents at beginning
ZENE of year 13,179 42,907
EFANTIER Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 18
e A 12,457 13,179

E59EBSTIHIM T N AWM SIREB —F 5 o
The notes on pages 59 to 85 form part of these financial statements.
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Wi 55 ¥ 5= B O£
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(BRSEXHN  FIEIY (Amounts expressed in thousands of
AT F A5 R) Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated)
1. Bt GENERAL

VMESCE-—NN=ZFRNA=ZTHEHRE(EEETFZA)(F430F)E3 4 R6FBIRNE £
—HA=ZF)N\A-—BARYLHIEIMUEEZES(TEE]) L HIMAZHFIINZFTAHNL
WEIEMUARITEHIMEE  ARTFREEERH LM EICHME X £ L2 FO RS MK
B oMb SN - £ IEMAL TRIRRCGER Y EE X P (F344F) M IB b ERIEE R BB R iR
HERRS -

The Land Registry Trading Fund (“the Fund”) was established on 1 August 1993 under the Legislative
Council Resolution passed on 30 June 1993 pursuant to sections 3, 4 and 6 of the Trading Funds
Ordinance (Cap. 430). The Land Registry administers a land registration system by maintaining an
up-to-date Land Register and provides its customers with services and facilities for searches of the Land
Register and related land records. The Land Registry also processes applications for the incorporation of
owners and provides related services under the Building Management Ordinance (Cap. 344).

2. EXSITBEE MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
21 FFEEN SR Statement of compliance

AMSHERRRBCEEVSHREATEMN U DE/FAL BFEFEITIIAS M
PREERONRIBEMSHREEN - FEIHENRER) REE RN IR H -
HEERPNBERITBERINBWAT -

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with HKFRS Accounting Standards,
which is a collective term that includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”), Hong Kong Accounting Standards and Interpretations as issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), and accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong. Material accounting policies adopted by the Fund are set out
below.

AR MR TETHRALEITAEEVSIHEITEMFTESHASIT
HEREMRAHREMNRY - E2EAEEXRAETERNENDSI A2 LT 1t
MW HTRRAZEWMA)E RBREAMSHRE BRARBTHIE3 -

The HKICPA has issued certain new or amended HKFRS Accounting Standards that are first
effective or available for early adoption for the current accounting period of the Fund. Note 3
provides information on the changes, if any, in accounting policies resulting from initial application
of these developments to the extent that they are relevant to the Fund for the current and prior
accounting periods reflected in these financial statements.
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Wt 5% 3R 3R fff > Notes to the Financial Statements

2. EXSITHEw MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
22 M SRV EE Basis of preparation of the financial statements

AWM SHEA R EIEEARBEKRNEITE ©
The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial statements is historical cost.

WHTACEAEMSZSHEAT ANV SHMEFTZEEFFELHE - Hit Rk 1%F
AU T RRERSEWMS U ERRAOENE - ARE > A WASXEHOZRKA - 1Z
FHITERBAXRNRIR HRAFERREMESRBR FTHRANNGENHEFZMH AT © i
ERBEMIKBFEAIHRSE > N RBZFHITRBRRENHM A XA~ RAHAK
EENEE -BITERIZSEGENEBMRTE -

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS Accounting Standards requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making
judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

ZELUTREMKENRR2EFSRT MET2UHBHITRAZWEITH  AxEiT2
EZEATHARIA: BEITEWMASITHEARO2TH > W2ERITHERRKN 21T
HMHIA o

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods.

ESAEXBUTBRITEHA DS REMKBOSITHB - TN RKFELHRIR  HE
BERGBUHIRPAFENTABEER TR UMKEBARNE - §HUR ™ 757K
& B SR RIBEAT -

There are no critical accounting judgements involved in the application of the Fund’s accounting
policies. There are also no key assumptions concerning the future, or other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the next year.
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0t 5% 3R 3% fff 5= Notes to the Financial Statements

2. ERSITHE =) MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
23 sRMAFRER AR Financial assets and financial liabilities
(@ BEHIARITE Initial recognition and measurement

(b)

%@W@%ﬁ?@%%I%if © Bz MR R R EL A B MR T~ B MOk 0 A K
FoBRITER UERIAE RBITER -

The Fund’s financial assets comprise placement with the Exchange Fund, trade and other
receivables, amounts due from related parties, bank deposits, and cash and bank balances.

%?%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ@%@?ﬁﬁ‘EHM%&%@@HMW RS R 3% A £ 0K - BA
KT e

The Fund’s financial liabilities comprise customers’ deposits, trade and other payables,
amounts due to related parties and lease liabilities.

HSERNBRAERTANGOET S ZEBUNBXEBAS REBAL - T
BN ESRAFLEBAFRATFETE BN LIRERKRBZES B A ™

FRTEFTRARMEESI RN HHA -

The Fund recognises financial assets and financial liabilities on the date it becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument. At initial recognition, financial assets and
financial liabilities are measured at fair value plus or minus transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets or the issue of the financial liabilities.

PEREREFITE Classification and subsequent measurement

7(
EeBEMASBAT D XNERUAEIRNEZZEZBRERAEITE BEVAEXER
ﬁ?%%ﬂé%ﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁmmlxﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ BENINERVNAFAXNNOARE
TRAFNSHERREBEMNI2IMENTMBAGEA SRR ITE -

pa
=
e

>

The Fund classifies all financial assets as subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, on the basis that they are held within a business model whose
objective is to hold them for collection of contractual cash flows and the contractual cash
flows represent solely payments of principal and interest. The measurement of loss
allowances for financial assets is based on the expected credit loss model as described in
note 2.3(d).

EHRMEBERTESMA NS MACAMBERANE - ANIED RFEIAG X BB
MERAIXIEHNTE - IFEAMEERABZERATAeRATES XY BRI
ﬁﬁﬁi%ﬁ PO IZ & 8RR 7= 8 IR BB 31z &m0 57 B0 4 45 X AN (B A& R BY
MR - BESHEUEXLGMNEN 2ZERZEMITANMAESAFRAGIHA TSR
£ 1 ﬁ&ﬁ%%%%%°ﬁ%ﬁ§@%%$hﬂ$ﬁ%%%ﬁ%@@ﬁiﬁ
%Aﬁﬂﬁm%% RBARFB E MR N AT -

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial
asset or a financial liability and of allocating and recognising the interest income or interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts or payments through the expected life of the financial asset or
financial liability to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or to the amortised cost of
the financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Fund estimates cash
flows by considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument but does not consider
the expected credit losses. The calculation includes all fees received or paid between parties
to the contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and all
other premiums or discounts.
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Wt 5% 3R 3R fff > Notes to the Financial Statements

2. EX2

TR ) MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

23 £MATREM MM (®) Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

PERREEBITE &) Classification and subsequent measurement (continued)
HEee %Eﬁﬁﬁi MAGRSENEFUAERMNEEZZBEXNEREITE  EHEAGRIE

B yE2.5FTR It = ©

The Fund classifies all financial liabilities as subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, except for lease liabilities as stated in note 2.5.

EeNEBEREERATNULISEXNLINEGN A BBEXRRTEFT DL - RN
{J\Z_ﬂzif /\7’_"

The Fund reclassifies a financial asset when and only when it changes its business model for
managing the asset. A financial liability is not reclassified.

XS IA Derecognition

é%)\inﬂm?ﬂ&ﬁlhi/ %E’J Q’]ﬂﬁ"ﬂ?ﬂ)ﬁm‘ H1Z & BR 7 E R 3B H) 42 X EE
D RBE R EREHELLE  ZERMA T 2 BOTHEBIA -

A financial asset is derecognised when the contractual rights to receive the cash flows from
the financial asset expire, or where the financial asset together with substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership have been transferred.

LHENEANRSRERKBUE B ZEMARBOTHEBIA -

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged
or cancelled, or expires.

ERTIAERE Impairment of financial instruments

ESHRMEEXNAEITENSH T A (R RKKERIN KB ESNHBRAKKN T AT
EVHERSRAMBAENN SR ESENRESREIEEK  MBMERSHRNITERE
MEUR T B MR FIA KB ER KR E A -

The Fund applies a three-stage approach to measure expected credit losses on financial
instruments (other than trade receivables) measured at amortised cost and to recognise the
corresponding loss allowances and impairment losses or reversals, with the change in credit
risk since initial recognition determining the measurement bases for expected credit losses:

F1MER 12 AMBERASHR
Stage 1: 12-month expected credit losses

EEVNEHBUARR 2RTANGERANRFLTKEBIEM £HAMBAEH 5 RP KRR
EREAFI12DARNAIRRENTAZHII RN ER SRS FTREIL -

For financial instruments for which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, the portion of the lifetime expected credit losses that represent the
expected credit losses that result from default events that are possible within the 12 months
after the reporting date are recognised.
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2. EX2

0t 5% 3R 3% fff 5= Notes to the Financial Statements

1T B3R (&) MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

23 £MATREMMMME (®) Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

(d)

R T AREE®) Impairment of financial instruments (continued)
FoME 2 MBI EATR-EERRE

Stage 2: Lifetime expected credit losses — not credit impaired

HEBMNIREIAAK - R T ENER BAﬁmEijJD’@%ﬂHEﬁH/E B 2HmHE
AsHR(RRESBRTEANTBEXRNMBAILELINEHEFIHNMBER
S T AL -

For financial instruments for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition but that are not credit impaired, lifetime expected credit losses representing
the expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over the expected life of
the financial instruments are recognised.

EIMER 2 MWMBMER SR - ERREE
Stage 3: Lifetime expected credit losses — credit impaired

FeMTEACSUEERBE 2N BMMBMER 55 F S A N KA K bR R
TAMEXANEMFER@TELHITE -

For financial instruments that have become credit impaired, lifetime expected credit losses
are recognised and interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the
amortised cost rather than the gross carrying amount.

MK TiRESE—ERESFT2HAHMER RN HITE -

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime
expected credit losses.

La el |2 JE 15 F X B Determining significant increases in credit risk
N B

EENMRER EERELREE
HA 9 o I 29 B RLB L/UWE
HWENRENL AR &E\HU

It REKANESRER THF HE’]%# % fﬁ&ﬁ?%%&?fﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ)@iﬁo

At each reporting date, the Fund assesses whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk for financial instruments since initial recognition by comparing the risk of default
occurring over the remaining expected life as at the reporting date with that as at the date of
initial recognition.  The assessment considers quantitative and qualitative historical
information as well as forward-looking information. A financial asset is assessed to be credit
impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future
cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.

ESEDAHES )&J:i‘?“ﬁ%fﬁﬂﬁéﬁﬁaiﬁ%%%ﬂ%)ﬂﬁﬁﬁ’éﬁmﬁ‘bﬂofdﬂf B
ME EMITARAREARNREROEELDR  HEEBRREH Tmﬁﬁﬂlﬁﬂi&
REMEREE -

The Fund assesses whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition on an individual or collective basis. For collective assessment, financial
instruments are grouped on the basis of shared credit risk characteristics, taking into account
investment type, credit risk ratings and other relevant factors.
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Wt 5% 3R 3R fff > Notes to the Financial Statements

2. EX2

TR ) MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

23 £MATREM MM (®) Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

(d)

ST RRE® Impairment of financial instruments (continued)
40 1e] 2 7 15 A X% Determining significant increases in credit risk (continued)
N E Y D)

SEERIFENBARUNRIEREANEEEARR - A SRIAEHBY
R AXSNFRERARGEESNVERHNBTLANNERREE 2
BANEEERAL S MIAMERALSHIFEH & MARINARFEX
iR 2 11 -

M

Placements with banks with an external credit rating of investment grade are considered to
have a low credit risk. Other financial instruments are considered to have a low credit risk if
they have a low risk of default and the counterparty or borrower has a strong capacity to
meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the near term. The credit risk on these financial
instruments is assessed as not having increased significantly since initial recognition.

FEERMASTANE  ZERAFSFCERATHRESHE KFRTETKAAL
ZREFEEESREFAME ErkEtiEMEnesfictemBRaRNHEIA -

When a financial asset is uncollectible, it is written off against the related loss allowance.
Such assets are written off after all the necessary procedures have been completed and the
amount of the loss has been determined. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.

ITEMRIIEH T Measurement of expected credit losses

CRTIANTHEATRENZER T AENHEXH NN R F REB MR 1t
MEASHREIMAEERISNIAE) ERIASHABRBREHNNTTESNIANSRE
SEeMBP2RINIASRERERNNERE -F2BAERS BAEERREE "
EeREZASNKEELASUTIATARZASNRITEZEMEHENGITR
RN RENINERERNEZRITENMER TR -

Expected credit losses of a financial instrument are an unbiased and probability-weighted
estimate of credit losses (i.e. the present value of all cash shortfalls) over the expected life of
the financial instrument. A cash shortfall is the difference between the cash flows due to the
Fund in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Fund expects to receive.
For a financial asset that is credit impaired at the reporting date, the Fund measures the
expected credit losses as the difference between the asset’s gross carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the asset’s original effective
interest rate.
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0t 5% 3R 3% fff 5= Notes to the Financial Statements

2. EXSITHE® MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.4 Pl - FR KM Property, plant and equipment

T—AA=FNR—BRBAESHDL - RZJRSEM  RUNKANERRILE2MEY
BRYESHRURPAINGEEAK - BE—AA=ZF/\A-BHEBENY L  RFEKH
M 932 5K R B AR AR ©

Property, plant and equipment appropriated to the Fund on 1 August 1993 were measured initially
at deemed cost equal to the value contained in the Legislative Council Resolution for the setting
up of the Fund. Property, plant and equipment acquired since 1 August 1993 are capitalised at
the actual costs incurred.

BREZIRIN ATl REREEMURKENR 21T BRI M@ RES 770k
(ft;x2.7) :

- TANA=FNA-BRAESERNERY: UK
- REESM BREENSEMTE RARKE URHEAMSET -

ERIBRUKKNENREMBAES R BN IHRRTIB- E2IRTXHF AT HER
B P aa it SR HT I o

The following items of property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress, are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses (note 2.7):

- buildings held for own use appropriated to the Fund on 1 August 1993; and

-  plant and equipment, including computer equipment, motor vehicles, furniture and fittings,
and other equipment.

Construction in progress is stated at cost less any impairment losses, and is not depreciated. It is
depreciated when completed and ready for use.
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Wt 5% 3R 3R fff > Notes to the Financial Statements

2. EXSITHEw MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.4 Yl - %% R EEM (&) Property, plant and equipment (continued)

FIRERBY L RERSMOGITAIERFH MELEBENBRHITRREROK
AE-BROMGITAIERFRDOT

- EBRY 30%F
- EBWEH 5- 104
- BN RAREE 54
- A% 5%

B AERAFARMREESIMNIREFELAER TG HFEELMNIFLIFE-

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of property, plant and equipment, less their
estimated residual value, on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives as follows:

- Buildings 30 years
—  Computer equipment 5—-10 years
- Equipment, furniture and fittings 5 years
—  Motor vehicles 5 years

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and
adjusted if appropriate.

T HANA=F)\A—BRPAESHNERYAEN LA NEFIBR> -

The land on which the Fund’s buildings are situated as appropriated to the Fund on 1 August 1993
is regarded as a non-depreciating asset.

HEDL REESMOBRAALEMSFAESR~NIKEE 2 BOZEFRRE - HE
HEBT2EWERABIA -

Gains or losses arising from the disposal of property, plant and equipment are determined as the

difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, and are
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income on the date of disposal.
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0t 5% 3R 3% fff 5= Notes to the Financial Statements

2. EXRSITHE = MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.5 A& Leases

fﬁ‘z/\?ﬁiﬁﬁEIZ:EJWJ%%/R%%WEﬁai}dﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁF)SUfE}‘_E’ﬁHmJ\L\ HeW e FH 57
A2 ABIATHERAERRENER ~HENBXFTM 2 EE T ﬁﬁmuﬁ%&ﬁ%%
[E & e

A lease is recognised in the statement of financial position as a right-of-use asset with a
corresponding lease liability at the lease commencement date, except that payments associated
with short-term leases having a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets are
charged to the statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

FEANA T 2LAAENER RITIIB R ERADRES RITE (FE2.7) - ZERBNE - KM
RHERFOETAIERFEFHRETNREEAELEZNIE -

A right-of-use asset is measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses
(note 2.7). The right-of-use asset is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the
lease term and the asset’s estimated useful life.

f RNRREEARAN X MNERRMOIEITE - AAETRSMEFTI - 0% H
RRBEWE )ﬂljbxﬁiﬂﬁ@i‘{ﬁ*hf”??ﬁf)°fﬂm;Jﬁﬁ)ih‘zfﬁmﬁﬂmiﬂmﬂ’\ﬁ*u%‘—%ﬁﬁ
Ezﬁﬂ”\ﬁ BRI REMRTHAMGEGRXEREXNEFITEFFE -

The lease liability is measured at the present value of the lease payments payable over the lease
term, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, the Fund’s incremental borrowing rate. The lease liability is subsequently adjusted by
the effect of the interest on and the settlement of the lease liability, and the remeasurement arising
from any reassessment of the lease liability or lease modification.
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2. ERSITBEER w MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
26 TE&REF Intangible assets

TR BEWANERBRFERRED R AR B KRR T RKAE - BT E
RE T &AL T S it B IR AERR L AT AR AL kR K Mz M
ENBERBRERBTAIF L TEFERMTENRT”  BROFAKERT 2WAK
?L EW('JBH@%)?A??EH& MARAXHE - TR~ RERANENRR RIS REMRES
5 51 ik (B 5E2.7

Intangible assets include acquired computer software licences and capitalised development costs
of computer software programmes. Expenditure on development of computer software
programmes is capitalised only if the expenditure can be measured reliably, the programmes are
technically feasible, future economic benefits are probable and the Fund intends to and has
sufficient resources to complete development and to use the resulting asset. Otherwise, it is
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income as incurred. Intangible assets are stated at
cost less accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses (note 2.7).

TR OB ERGEITAEAFHGEI0F) AELEIA B K ER -

Amortisation of intangible assets is charged to the statement of comprehensive income on a
straight-line basis over the assets’ estimated useful lives of 5 to 10 years.

WMHIDE FERFHARMREES NI SFE AN AT G AELEZINEE -

Amortisation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and
adjusted if appropriate.

27 € E =R E Impairment of non-financial assets

FEBAS(BEDAL RERSM  ERARESMEER ) NKEEES MRS B 1T
i UHEEALURELIR - EAREZRMA~MNKEES T AT KE SRS - UE
ABESH2AELERERABIL RN AIKLOHRFNEAFERLEXASERE
MERHNRSE

The carrying amounts of non-financial assets, including property, plant and equipment, right-of-use
assets and intangible assets, are reviewed at each reporting date to identify any indication of
impairment. If any such indication exists, an impairment loss is recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use.
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2. ERSITBER ®w MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
28 HERERMNE Cash and cash equivalents

2.9

NekFRATERATERTER UEBEHMEBESHRR  ZFWME EMA
BEEEAE AT N A HENAIRRAEMHTNI S MENEZSHOHKE AKX -

Cash and cash equivalents include cash and bank balances, and other short-term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, having been within three months of maturity at acquisition.

1% 3E Y N Deferred revenue

EEEBERSTESH B XMNRN KBS EALXERFORNETN - £
SBEANNTHIANNBERA ESEBERSUBTERHTERN  2)FHBIAR
FEUA - FEEL U A DI AT IA

If a customer pays consideration, or the Fund has an unconditional right to consideration, before
the Fund transfers a service to the customer, the Fund recognises its contract liability as deferred
revenue. The Fund derecognises the deferred revenue and recognises revenue when the Fund
transfers the service and, therefore, satisfies its performance obligation.

210E A B A Employee benefits

HEWNERABRBRAFSARGART Fe AFMEREFRAXVERARBERRS
PEFEANUTEEBUAKR - BRAFAMS  BAMTFEANTXBEEBEFNTHREX
BRETERAEDETRANERKENEERN HERAREBEABRSAEFESH -

The employees of the Fund comprise civil servants and contract staff. Salaries, staff gratuities and
annual leave entitlements are accrued and recognised as expenditure in the year in which the
associated services are rendered by the staff. For civil servants, staff on-costs, including pensions
and housing benefits provided to the staff by the Government of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region (“the Government”), are charged as expenditure in the year in which the
associated services are rendered.

RRAZEREZREENRFTANKENRD BRE TN T BT A XK &M IT <
FogEMRATME  E2RCRBIMERRE 1T FH)(F485F) THIT M HE K T 2@
mRNXH -

For civil servants employed on pensionable terms, their pension liabilities are discharged by
reimbursement of the staff on-costs charged by the Government. For other staff, contributions to
the schemes under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (“MPFSQ”) (Cap. 485) are
charged to the statement of comprehensive income as incurred.
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2. ERSITBEER w MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.11 W\ B9 8 TA Revenue recognition

ES2AEMNErBEMABNRSUBTEEAOREN  HES MM KR IZIMIRS T
MNERNOTH  BHINESEHHKA -

The Fund recognises revenue from contracts with customers when it satisfies a performance
obligation by transferring a promised service to a customer, at the amount of consideration to
which the Fund expects to be entitled in exchange for the service.

MR A K B 3K B A K DA R 1 E AR AR I -
Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective interest method.

2128 MR E Foreign currency translation

AERNIIDRZERZBOIAFLRREARN BT - LB ITH R BT R~ R AR
BIRE B LR RE N BT o ATIRE S ML H S RS RAE 2 E KSR T
RN

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars using the spot
exchange rates at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in currencies
other than Hong Kong dollars are translated into Hong Kong dollars using the closing exchange
rate at the reporting date. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income.

213KXE AT Related parties

EerRREC(EEESZINDRY  FRBAE TN — MRS -FRN ESHEREF
JLXEF'%X%&Aj:J&ﬁX% thb?%ﬁAj:@%BZﬁmﬁ%ﬁ%%&%ﬁﬂ HihEiz &
T URXBFAEGSKBANEEERE W OB WK E LM -

The Fund is a separate accounting entity within the Government established under the Trading
Funds Ordinance. During the year, the Fund has entered into transactions with various related
parties, including government bureaux and departments, other trading funds and financially
autonomous bodies controlled or significantly influenced by the Government, in the ordinary
course of its business.
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SITHERE CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

BEAEUMRACPMATETHERZEITA(EEMSHES I ENHTESNA2ITHE
REB -ERTAMSHREMEMFENUER  ARAXLERRMAEMRE -

The HKICPA has issued certain new or amended HKFRS Accounting Standards that are first effective
for the current accounting period of the Fund. There have been no changes to the accounting policies
applied in these financial statements for the years presented as a result of these developments.

HE®HRARPEAR S U HI 1 R A B (E A7) 37 8 N sk 8% (Ffx22) -

The Fund has not applied any new standard or interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period (note 22).

XKEBEFEAHAZWAN REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH
CUSTOMERS

2025 2024
IR S E A Registration of documents 134,216 136,538
= fif Search 79,499 77,834
BRI Copying 80,131 75,557
W AR E Reports on title 43,291 64,210
BFRRRS e-Alert services 18,433 25,952
W ETREARS Owners’ corporation services 26,172 21,099
HAb Others 17,710 14,739
=% Total 399,452 415,929

EeEEFANTHNBEARE TESRATFREDEXHIMEER LT LMNE
REMEFORS - FTLIARBURS B ETANRS R AABREESTUKS - 8 A
BNRSHE -ESRERBERSVEANBITELHTUE - HIEE RIBEIREALFUEH AL SE -

The Fund’s performance obligations in contracts with customers mainly involve providing services, for
registration of documents and searches of the Land Register and related land records, to the
customers. A customer is required to pay a fixed amount of service fee for each service in advance, or
opt to have service fees being charged monthly by opening an account with the Fund. The Fund
satisfies its performance obligation as the service is rendered and recognises the fee over time based
on a cost-to-cost method.

ERXEALTRBLIVREIEARS HTEH ESRERERSORNETELHRE  HME
A% # i i ] = BB Ak AN T S IA AR 55 2% o

For owners’ corporation services provided to related parties, the Fund satisfies its performance

obligation as the service is rendered and recognises a service fee over time on a full cost recovery
basis.
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1= 1F B 2 OPERATING COSTS

2025 2024
AT %M Staff costs
-FM R EMR T 5RA — Salaries and other staff costs 314,221 313,026
— 58 # 1% A R 1t & — Contributions to the schemes under

BT 891 L K MPFSO 20,469 18,134

—REzEFX General operating expenses 15,166 19,078
B8 X AR 55 T % Computer service charges 43,999 45,835
e kEx%A Rental and related charges 18,615 20,121
R R ITIER %R A Central administrative overheads 4,984 4171
718 K P 5 Depreciation and amortisation 25,291 31,009
=it 3% A Audit fees 708 649
=il Total 443,453 452,023
H g A OTHER INCOME

2025 2024
FE Interest from:
-BITEXR — bank deposits 12,517 16,365
-INCEESTFR — placement with the Exchange Fund 41,976 38,033
=i Total 54,493 54,398

B E &R~ B R =E

RATE OF RETURN ON FIXED ASSETS

BEAFLQAHREEAS2E PR (FEBEFNEWA)RABE R~ F2ETE  FABI K

BEDL - RERBM MR - MBS A AR AWK =&«

RIEKCEZEESFXIEENEFEERT BHEHREN6.0%(ZF _MF :6.0%) °

The rate of return on fixed assets is calculated as total comprehensive income (excluding interest
income) divided by average net fixed assets, and expressed as a percentage. Fixed assets include
property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets only. The Fund is expected to meet a target rate
of return on fixed assets of 6.0% (2024: 6.0%) per year as determined by the Financial Secretary under
the Trading Funds Ordinance.
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8. Ml - ZEFNEM PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
B/
TR B E:|
By BN RRE A% X |
Equipment,
Landand  Computer Furniture Motor
Buildings  Equipment and Fittings Vehicles Total
B Cost
E-E-_=FNA—H At 1 April 2023 350,000 193,859 31,207 237 575,303
NE Additions - 14,536 22 - 14,558
&/ T H Disposals - (5,095) - - (5,096)
E-Z-ME=A=+—H At 31 March 2024 350,000 203,300 31,229 237 584,766
E-Z-_MENA—H At 1 April 2024 350,000 203,300 31,229 237 584,766
NE Additions - 6,522 321 - 6,843
e/ 4 Disposals - (436) (973) - (1,409)
E-Z-nf=A=t-H At 31 March 2025 350,000 209,386 30,577 237 590,200
RitH 1A Accumulated depreciation
E-E-_=FNA—H At 1 April 2023 114,249 159,098 26,161 47 299,555
FR % R Charge for the year 2,451 9,855 3,153 47 15,506
L&/ R % Written back on disposals - (5,095) - - (5,095)
EZZ-ME=A=+—H  At31March 2024 116,700 163,858 29,314 94 309,966
E-Z-_MENA—H At 1 April 2024 116,700 163,858 29,314 94 309,966
FRER Charge for the year - 9,645 1,527 48 11,220
HE/THER Written back on disposals - (436) (973) - (1,409)
E-Z-EF=A=1t—-H  At31March2025 116,700 173,067 29,868 142 319,777
A Net book value
A-Z-RF=f=t-H At 31 March 2025 233,300 36,319 709 95 270,423
E-FE-MF=A=1—H At 31 March 2024 233,300 39,442 1,915 143 274,800

E_7_£¢ B=+—8B TPl - &Z2REMHOKEERHBIANS0 BT HERIREN
EM(ZZFE_INF : 500 FBIT) °

As at 31 March 2025, HK$5.9 million (2024: HK$5.9 million) recognised in the carrying amount of
property, plant and equipment was the amount of construction in progress.
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9. &

(@) ERAME™

(b)

LEASES

Right-of-use assets

ERY
Buildings
2025 2024
XA Cost
EEH At beginning of year 30,314 30,314
EFITERTAG Remeasurement of lease liabilities (698) —
EF R At end of year 29,616 30,314
it #1H Accumulated depreciation
£ F 9 At beginning of year 18,803 15,276
FRNEH Charge for the year 3,356 3,527
TEF 44 At end of year 22,159 18,803
i [ % B Net book value
TEF 44 At end of year 7,457 11,511
HE NG Lease liabilities
2025 2024
ViR Current 3,173 3,359
ER Non-current 4,595 8,544
=R Total 7,768 11,903
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9. *HJJE: (£8) LEASES (continued)
(b) 5T A Lease liabilities (continued)
TEERAENENTY  BENLNENL TS -

The table below shows changes in lease liabilities, including both cash and non-cash changes.

2025 2024
£ F 7)) At beginning of year 11,903 15,525
kERAY S MEBZS : Changes from financing cash flows:
XA AR5 S Payments of lease liabilities (3,742) (3,840)
FIEE : Non-cash changes:
MEMRHMNE X T Interest expense on lease liabilities 305 218
EFiTEHET AR Remeasurement of lease liabilities (698) -
EFL At end of year 7,768 11,903

MEMGROFREOBRINBUAT - AEXAHBREBEAHAGIANASRETID

The remaining contractual maturities of lease liabilities, which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows, are shown below:

2025 2024
—F K Within one year 3,410 3,520
—FRERFNH After one year but within two years 3,720 3,840
MEREERLFNH After two years but within five years 980 4,852
=% i Total 8,110 12,212
(c) TemEWERNHIAS  Expense items in relation to leases recognised in
HEEXHNXXHIMA the statement of comprehensive income
2025 2024
MEMAGRNFE T Interest expense on lease liabilities 305 218
(d HEZIEARE LM Total cash outflow for leases
2025 2024
2 58 1 fix Lease liabilities 3,742 3,840
EREHERE  ESRNKETHED N -FANASMEEAGBEHE S <F

=RA=+—8H E’\J'ﬂﬁﬁkifﬁn%&%ﬁﬁ%w

After the end of the reporting period, the Fund early terminated the lease. The right-of-use assets
and the lease liabilities will be fully derecognised in the financial year ending 31 March 2026.
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10. TR = INTANGIBLE ASSETS

B8 o0 2K 4 heE AR
RASIT KRB
Computer software licences
and system development costs

2025 2024
BX A5 Cost
EF 4] At beginning of year 289,456 263,406
NE Additions 28,212 26,728
HE Disposals - 678)
EFR At end of year 317,668 289,456
E-Shg L] Accumulated amortisation
EFH) At beginning of year 212,063 200,765
FRNZH Charge for the year 10,715 11,976
HE ST Ok Written back on disposals - 678)
TR At end of year 222,778 212,063
bk % & Net book value
fEE R At end of year 94,890 77,393
MINCEEEFER PLACEMENT WITH THE EXCHANGE FUND

INSCRESTFERERNI11471Z2FB L (ZFEZNF 1 10.74912%8 0)  EHF 792 B Tt (ZFE _WF :
TOUZBT) NAEARED 3247128 (ZF M4 : 2849278 ) NIRE H 2 A KB i K 12 BLAY F
B -GFRENARFE(BHERBEIT)  BRATREIERAS -

The balance of the placement with the Exchange Fund amounted to HK$1,114.7 milion (2024:
HK$1,074.9 million), being the principal sums of HK$790 million (2024: HK$790 million) plus interest
paid but not yet withdrawn at the reporting date of HK$324.7 million (2024: HK$284.9 million). The
term of the placement is six years from the date of placement, during which the amount of principal
sums cannot be withdrawn.

SINCESHERAMEREF - AEENBEERRUTE - ZEXRRINLESRARAEG T EEFNF
HERRARLOR  AB3FHBAOSEL - NFENFHFEREE - A% A TR - BHERE
ReE&E —E_ANFNEESXRNEF44% M_T_MWHFNEFI7%-

Interest on the placement is payable at a fixed rate determined every January. The rate is the average
annual investment return of the Exchange Fund’s Investment Portfolio for the past six years or the
average annual yield of three-year Government Bond for the previous year subject to a minimum of zero
percent, whichever is the higher. The interest rate has been fixed at 4.4% per annum for the calendar
year 2025 and at 3.7% per annum for the calendar year 2024.
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12. Mk R Ha SN W I TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

2025 2024
7 U5 2R Trade receivables 9,568 8,326
Bt FE - Accrued interest from:
-BITHER — bank deposits 2,123 6,691
-INCESTFR — placement with the Exchange Fund 12,093 9,888
A I Prepayments 5,289 5,710
B Total 29,073 30,615

13.5F8FHNENER CONTRACT BALANCES WITH
CUSTOMERS

(@ NMUBHRIMMEARF Receivables and contract assets

EAREMEESRENKRST S - RS B AN K RIS R BT M 1280 & d ik
R ETRETREALORS T -EFE-_RAF=A=T—HHONEKMERN1,078 T8 T
(ZE_MF: 976 FBT) RERCEBRETUSRARPHNEREANLKK - MES
HREEMBRTEARRSNENR~ ETEMRS A TESSTHERS EA - Bt
EE R TN BB ERA HHR> -

For services provided to customers with service fees charged monthly, the balance of receivables
at the reporting date is presented as trade receivables in note 12. For services provided to related
parties, the balance of receivables as at 31 March 2025 of HK$10.8 million (2024: HK$9.8 million)
is included in the amounts due from related parties in the statement of financial position. The Fund
does not have any contract assets arising from these two categories of services. For other
services, since customers pay the service fees in advance, the Fund does not have any receivables
or contract assets.
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1. 5FFNEANAE R CONTRACT BALANCES WITH
CUSTOMERS (continued)

(b) 69 KMHKE Contract liabilities

HEeEUBRELAANERARRETFRERSOHRE 2 TS RRKRF RSB TR AN
BRI 2 mT

The Fund’s obligations to provide services to customers for which the Fund has received advance
payments from the customers are presented as deferred revenue in the statement of financial
position, as analysed below:

i 3T Y N\ Deferred revenue 2025 2024
A AR 55 2% Registration fees 6,654 6,138
BFRRRS S e-Alert service fees 13,646 13,373
H b AR %5 %% Other service fees 1,486 1,519
=Rl Total 21,786 21,030
(e Representing:

it 2 T 3R Current liabilities 8,811 8,571

R 3 AR Non-current liabilities 12,975 12,459
=il Total 21,786 21,030

ERBERANERDEREEDHEREGTET(AFDPRBEBRITNEHTENRIZMN
REF - EEHH AXREFRIRSNBLERAS TSERNRBIN WA - M E ik T
WA 2 T1ERRBINNKRA - RBEREFSHONKRNKRAALZ SN

The balances of deferred revenue above represent the aggregate amount of the transaction price
allocated to the performance obligations that are unsatisfied (or partially unsatisfied) at the
reporting date. For the deferred revenue from e-Alert services, the Fund expects to recognise as
revenue within eight years. For other deferred revenue, the Fund expects to recognise as revenue
within one year. No consideration from contracts with customers is not included in the transaction
price.
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1. 5FZFHNEANE R CONTRACT BALANCES WITH

CUSTOM ERS (continued)

(b) &Y 5K %) Contract liabilities (continued)

FRNEEBAERNBEREH AT :

Significant changes in the balances of deferred revenue during the year are shown below:

2025 2024
EFYBERALERFTH Decrease due to recognition as
KM TFFRNIRKRFIARWA  revenue during the year that
Rk > was included in the balances of
deferred revenue at beginning of
year (5,733) (8,165)
FRYWE TG R A Increase due to advance payments
3 1N received during the year 6,489 6,387
14. 8P ®RE CUSTOMERS’ DEPOSITS
BREFRERSIIKRNES -
This represents deposits received from customers for services to be rendered.
15.EAERNKE PROVISION FOR EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

BN ETHERSERARENRSETEAFREAARAATHENMEITAGRIA

Bf3E2.10) °

This represents the estimated liability for employees’ annual leave and obligations on contract-end
gratuities payable to contract staff for services rendered up to the reporting date (see note 2.10).

16. EEEE R R TRADING FUND CAPITAL

It B X B IR e

This represents the Government’s investment in the Fund.
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17. RE 2 A RETAINED EARNINGS
2025 2024
£ %ﬂ B 48 R Balance at beginning of year 1,466,381 1,468,328
FELS2EKZE Total comprehensive income for the year 10,492 18,304
% 7 B R Statutory return to the Government (20,718) (20,251)
EFEANER Balance at end of year 1,456,155 1,466,381

18.

FH BRABRECEZERFIDEREBEE T _MF=A=+-HIEFENEHRER
I EBEBRF —RRA MEZER T T _AF=AxK (T _0OF  BE_T_=F%F
A=t BLEFENBEHFREAHRNERT T _HF=A%EMK) °

During the year, the Government directed the transfer of the target return (see note 7) for the year
ended 31 March 2024 into general revenue pursuant to the Trading Funds Ordinance, and the transfer
was completed in March 2025 (2024: the transfer of the target return for year ended 31 March 2023
was completed in March 2024).

HekERWMWE CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
2025 2024
Me RBITER Cash and bank balances 12,457 13,179
RITFER Bank deposits 195,000 266,000
NIE Subtotal 207,457 279,179
A RABBR AN A L Less: Bank deposits with original
HIRTTIE R maturities over three months (195,000) (266,000)
NekERAS Cash and cash equivalents 12,457 13,179
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19. XREALTHRS RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
BREEAMSREASHERBOIIN  FASKEATHITHRBEARBHEMT :

Apart from those separately disclosed in the financial statements, the other material related party
transactions for the year are summarised as follows:

@ EETRAXREATIRHENRSE/LHEIM BRI HWEBLCH LRI ML ST BHEH LU
22 F B AR AR E - PAR b 37 FIEHARSS - X LEPRSF N E S FHRA LA N1.2301Z78 T
(ZF-HEF 1329028 7T) - XEF U EEME4ANRBEETFLEHZWATT ¢

services provided to related parties included registration of land documents, search of land
registers and records, supply of copies of land records and reports on title, and owners’
corporation services. The total revenue derived from these services amounted to HK$123.0 million
(2024: HK$132.9 million). This amount is included in revenue from contracts with customers
under note 4;

b)) *EALTMESRENRSBIEERER  HAME - PRITBC UAEFITHRS - E&
AXLEREAFENEF I N270F BT (ZE_ME 3460 87T) X&TM2ITE R
MIESHEER AT « A K&

services received from related parties included computer services, accommodation, central
administration and auditing. The total cost incurred on these services amounted to
HK$27.8 million (2024: HK$34.6 million). This amount is included in operating costs under note 5; and

© MAREATHANYL ERIERSBVERELEETIR XERHNEKANRZA1TET
ZEZME:2F2FETT) °

acquisition of property, plant and equipment from related parties included fitting out projects. The
total cost of these assets amounted to HK$0.3 million (2024: HK$22,000).

B 8] 35 58 A 42 {2 R 25 4 0 20 O R 30 A BR 25 g 2R 0 2 AR K — O - B L
REEARNRS  WEA AN BT RIEHRASEATHRS  MHKE 2 BAA SR
i

Charging for services rendered to or received from related parties was on the same basis, that is, at the
rates payable by the general public for services which were also available to the public or on a full cost
recovery basis for services which were available only to related parties.

20. € @i X B B 12 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(@ WRERBE Investment policy

HUNFERTHIARBRABRINCESERRBITIERANEMA ™ - RAMNRE =2
RRAMEESRESRBER BETREERMALENES  HATEEMERAH -

The Fund maintains a conservative approach on investments in financial assets including
placement with the Exchange Fund and bank deposits. Investment decisions are made according
to the guidelines from the Secretary for Financial Services and the Treasury, the Hong Kong
Monetary Authority and other relevant regulations.
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20. € @ X\ B B B (a) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(b) 15 AKX Credit risk

ERARREZBIAN-—TRBITEBRTREMASSIES T REXMSRRONK -

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and
cause the other party to incur a financial loss.

ESWERNR  TRBURTINCES 75K B UK R Ko B At 57 U R I0 + B7 47 5% 1% A £ 11K
P BRITHEREBRITER -ERITAERRER  ARFSERIFENEHAXEE -

The Fund’s credit risk is primarily attributable to placement with the Exchange Fund, trade and
other receivables, amounts due from related parties, bank deposits and bank balances. The Fund
has a credit policy in place and the exposure to these credit risks is monitored on an ongoing
basis.

NREBRERANE  FBEERERIGERTEENFTEET ESHEHKERBEA L
ER - s RESEBFET2NANMEASHENBRATE RS W EMFRNTRADT
EX-

To minimise credit risks, all fixed deposits are placed with licensed banks in Hong Kong. The
Fund’s exposure to credit risk is considered to be limited. The loss allowances are measured at
amounts equal to 12-month expected credit losses, which are assessed to be immaterial by the
Fund.

RITERAMRBTERNERRE UBASESFERBEEN IR 2MAT

The credit quality of bank deposits and bank balances, analysed by the ratings designated by
Moody’s or their equivalents, is shown below:

2025 2024

BERITH : Credit rating:
Aal £ Aa3 Aal to Aa3 11,703 23,222
A1 2 A3 A1 to A3 195,102 255,101
B Total 206,805 278,323

SREMERASATEREANT EEGHTEATRBEASTHREN A TNELS
MRER -

While other financial assets are subject to the impairment requirements, the Fund has estimated
that their expected credit losses are minimal and considers that no loss allowance is required.

EREAESNSRASAIAENRSERXNRHTEL T HIKEE -

The maximum exposure to credit risk of the financial assets of the Fund at the reporting date is
equal to their carrying amounts.
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20. € @ X B B BB (4) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(c) mIIHEEMX Liquidity risk

(d)

MARENEER - KEBELNBTSERAMERNTENN

Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with
financial liabilities.

BIE(E2ES KA EenhmHIN CERARIISHEHER RV K
A Al HEE o giﬂ’]ﬂ(ﬁmfﬁ/ﬁﬂ%gﬁ Hﬁ&ﬁ,ﬁéﬁé’]/ﬁwﬁ TFE HREL4FITEOIN
uﬁ%y\ J//(fk/\‘liﬂﬁﬂmmu ﬂﬁ@%gﬂjﬂ giﬂﬁ//luéﬂﬁ\/4jilﬁi%\f$ Wﬁﬁx—m’]mubﬂ

\blt
= K
un}*

DP

Under the Trading Funds Ordinance, the Fund is responsible for its own cash management,
including short-term and long-term investment of cash surpluses, subject to approval by the
Financial Secretary. The Fund’s policy is to regularly monitor current and expected liquidity
requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term. As the Fund has a strong liquidity position, it has a very
low level of liquidity risk.

2 X e Interest rate risk
FERRIESBMT AN AFERARASHELETHHEEHTRAHRE - FIER

B_L—f **/Ffj\jj/ TE%‘JTRB_L&I \//liﬂ%lj_{ﬂgﬁ"

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. This can be further classified into fair value
interest rate risk and cash flow interest rate risk.

NFEFENGEC#TANAFESEN S EE MK MK - BT RS RT
FREBEEMERITE AWHMEREF XUEGFROQXFERS TR -AM AT XER
KR MEKABEINNR TN ENEGF2FMERKTELESHFRERF -

Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. Since the Fund’s bank deposits bear interest at fixed
rates, their fair values will fall when market interest rates increase. However, as they are all stated
at amortised cost, changes in market interest rates will not affect their carrying amounts and the
Fund’s profit for the year.

NEREMNEXNKESHRITANRRNERECEAMGMNEL G MEIAONR K2
TENEANISREFNENKR  ANEFENTESR T AN TS ZESM I A

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate

because of changes in market interest rates. The Fund is not exposed to material cash flow
interest rate risk because it has no major financial instruments bearing interest at a floating rate.
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Wt 5% 3R 3R fff > Notes to the Financial Statements

20. R X S B B (a)

21.

(e)

(f)

(9)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

s% X S Currency risk
EMRKREERIANATFEIAKRNERESEA LELHMEAHINE o

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in foreign exchange rates.

Ee—RULFZFXHEABTANEL BMA23 B MK -

The Fund’s normal business transactions are denominated in Hong Kong dollars and therefore do
not give rise to currency risk.

ETUETHEMNRA ETETSETES ESNEDRRER-

In respect of investments denominated in United States dollars, owing to the linked exchange rate
of the Hong Kong dollar to the United States dollar, the Fund has a very low level of currency risk.

T-E_RAF=A=1T—"HB UEATHNFUNERA~LUHATAERL(ZT_MNEF:
5FBRL) - HrWemMATRAABESRAGREABITAARL -
As at 31 March 2025, financial assets totalling HK$5,000 (2024: HK$5,000) were denominated in

United States dollars. The remaining financial assets and all financial liabilities were denominated
in Hong Kong dollars.

Hia £ /X Other financial risk
HeRATEF—RAEEMNIINLCESHEREXZ(ME1)MNETMABEIT BN - F
—TE-_RAF=ZA=+—8" RBRIEE Ei*bﬂ/ﬁ"‘SO/P%ﬁﬁﬁH@%T\’E’ﬁﬁifgé’%
A5, B 560 A& T (—FE M4 : 540 /& TT) ©

The Fund is exposed to financial risk arising from changes in the interest rate on the placement
with the Exchange Fund which is determined every January (note 11). As at 31 March 2025, it is
estimated that an increase/decrease of 50 basis points in the interest rate, with all other variables
held constant, would have increased/decreased the profit for the year by HK$5.6 million (2024:
HK$5.4 million).

NEE Fair value

AR IAYUSERATFERSHEE T RN TAEWT SRR KRN FI K

All financial instruments are stated in the statement of financial position at amounts equal to or not
materially different from their fair values.

A & i CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
TE_RF=ZRA=1t—"HA ESHAREVFTREARSZNEAEBNOT :

As at 31 March 2025, the Fund had capital commitments, so far as not provided for in the financial
statements, as follows:

2025 2024
EHERESY Authorised and contracted for 14,339 14,488
EHEEERZ Y Authorised but not yet contracted for 226,562 195,252
=i} Total 240,901 209,740
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22 M EFEZ_SE_HF POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
ZA=t+—HBLEFEEHAK NEWSTANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
A£MEIEIT - FEN KZi2%  ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
SEIEEEAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

EEAMSHMERLZE  FEEU MR 2B WM ZBUET ~ FEN F12 & - ZFE1AT - 5
MEkEBREBE T _AF=A=Z1T—"BLEFERKRER TRBEAM S HEK PR R
@ o 3 EN B

St
i

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has issued a number of amendments,
new standards and interpretations which are not yet effective for the year ended 31 March 2025 and
which have not been early adopted in these financial statements. The new standards include:

EUTHBHZE
Tt BER
Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

EHEM SR EENE185 [ 53R K5I R A0 45 55 | —E_t+F¥—HF—H

HKFRS 18 “Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements” 1 January 2027

EeEWEBEARPEEVSREENEIBSNEMSFSIMREO AT LRI o

The Fund is in the process of assessing the possible impact on its financial statements of HKFRS 18 in
the period of initial application.

BEBEMESIREENFE18S [ 5 IR K5+ F0 4 55 |
HKFRS 18 “Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements”

EEMBSMEENEBSHABESIHENFEIS[MSIHRIIIR] > st E W E RO T XA
AT B @SR - RHLE S0 UERBXBERERE LA SIEFORKESI AFHE -
HeWB R ZENNEVSHROLEAZMW - ZHENET T _LF—HA—B&Z2F/IT
MEFERER ABEBPEMNA  RIEDZAAT SMNAEHINTEBRABTF - E2HEI
B ER A EVE H A R E BRI SR A < N -

HKFRS 18, which replaces HKAS 1 “Presentation of Financial Statements”, introduces new
requirements for presentation of specified categories and subtotals in the statement of comprehensive
income, aggregation and disaggregation of information, as well as disclosures related to management-
defined performance measures. The Fund is yet to assess the full impact of the standard on its financial
statements. The new standard is effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2027
and will be applied retrospectively with restatement of comparatives unless impracticable. At this stage,
the Fund does not intend to adopt the standard before its effective date.
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(a) 2024/25 F E fR 55 & &
PERFORMANCE PLEDGES 2024/25

R 55 18 47 KER&RA
R 55 45 (RERSIFER  (CRRIRRS AR AR
Service Standard Bot) Bath)
TERXR Performance Target Actual Performance
BR %52 5l Working 7% (% meeting service (% meeting service
Service Type Day(s) Minutes standard) standard)

1. 7B L3 U EM

Registration of land documents

(8) BRI X B ERE D FME) P EF
THERMED D AR
From receipt of an instrument to updating  (a) 11
the land register with the registered
instrument ©eeNote - gnd

b) TREEABRFIFLETIMAXH
FEERRA LAY
Completion of imaging and return of ()3
the registered instrument to the lodging
party (See Note 1)

14 (a+b) 90 100

2. EENERE L EITH

Counter search of land registers 15 o7 100

3 RUTHLFHBLERR
Supply of imaged copies of land records
(a) EHEW FEY

Over the counter
o REIKEN
Without oversized plans
o fitENKEN
With oversized plans
(b) ZESL P LR 1T
Order via online services
(i) 5T,
Collection in person
o TEAGEN
Without coloured plans
o fhEREEN
With coloured plans
o fiEKEN
With oversized plans
(if) 4P &F 2 &1 1% 3% 43 &) % %
Delivery by post or courier
o TEHEEN
Without coloured plans
- N6 aIiTM
Orders placed before 6 pm
- TFeRERELZMN
EHRARARXBRBITE
Orders placed after 6 pm or on 2 97 100
Saturdays, Sundays & public
holidays
o MhEHEEN
With coloured plans
o fiEAREN
With oversized plans

15 97 99.7

5 97 100

1 97 100

3 97 100

5 97 100

1 97 100

3 97 100

5 97 100
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PR %5 2K 5
Service Type

IR %5 #5 &

Service Standard
IHERX
Working
Day(s)

Mt | Annex |

Bk 55 HE bR KERRI
(REIRS IR AR CRRIARS R AR
Bath) A5t)
Performance Target Actual Performance
(% meeting service (% meeting service
standard) standard)

4. Rt L2 FINER
Supply of certified copies of land records
(a) EIEW 7 B
Over the counter
o THIEIZM
Land registers
o NESAENEZELERAR
Imaged copies without oversized
plans
o [MfiEd KB RALIEEIR
Imaged copies with oversized plans
(b) iE 12 M L AR 55 1T
Order via online services
(i) &5 9
Collection in person
o i EICM
Land registers
o HEUMERIK
Imaged copies
- MESKEMN
Without oversized plans
- MhES KRB
With oversized plans
(if) HE & 26 H % 12 23 51X %
Delivery by post or courier
o LiEEM
Land registers
- THeRAIITM
Orders placed before 6 pm
- TFeREREE BN
EHARAXREITNE
Orders placed after 6 pm or on
Saturdays, Sundays & public
holidays
o FMEIKENEELIEE AR
Imaged copies without oversized
plans
o MfE RENE &AL ER
Imaged copies with oversized plans

o1

97

97

97

97

97

97

97

97

97

97

100

100

100

100

99.9

99.8

100

100

100

100

5. HEXMBWERRE
Sale of Memorial Day Book (MDB)
() #EFEM W E B EH R
Approval of MDB applications
b) FEIMBEAE AR
Delivery of MDB data files

98

98

100

100
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B st e 3
R 55 47 (RERSIFAER  CRBIARS 4R AR
Service Standard Bot) B
ITHERX Performance Target Actual Performance
R %5 3% 3l Working 2% (% meeting service (% meeting service
Service Type Day(s) Minutes standard) standard)
6. HERBIMBEARS
Sale of Monthly Memorial Information
on Mortgage Transactions (MMIM)
@) AR HBEASNEE ) o8 100
Approval of MMIM applications
b) ZREBIMBEAETHEE
Delivery of MMIM data files 4 % 100
7. BIEEARS
Telephone enquiry services
(@) AR EWREEF WE B EE400
V0|ce mail left during office hours mEE
Return calls within
40 minutes after 94 08
receiving the voice
mail
(b) FED BRI EE 5 T—1MIEREL
Voice mail left after office hours 1087 B B &
Return calls before 94 100
10 am on the next
working day
8. BTt EEMEN
Amendment of registered data
@ —RNMEAIREIMBERHELE
T E L)
Simple cases (i.e. Rectification of land 8 94 100
registers based on Memorial information)
AN~
b B &= 10 93 99.8

Compllcated cases

9. NERMIEMA P LEEMCHh B M
Registration of withheld instruments 15 (a+b) 90 99.8
redelivered for registration
(@) BB BRAEME PR IEIMXHE
BRIEEIMONPEFREX LHEIL
it AR
From receipt of a withheld instrument (@12
redelivered for registration to updating
the land register with the registered
instrument; and

b) TREELBREFFRETMAFH
ZEEREALT
Completion of imaging and return of the
registered instrument to the lodging party

() 3
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R %5 18 47 KRR
PR %5 45 (R REIFAERN  CRBIRSIRER
Service Standard BoH) B
TEXR Performance Target Actual Performance
BR %52 5l Working 2% (% meeting service (% meeting service
Service Type Day(s) Minutes standard) standard)
100 E T REARS
Owners’ corporation (OC) services
() 71 ER Ml F 3T B IE HE M OH2
Registration of OCs (S Note2) 25 % 100
(b) AL ET REALTEAE %0 % 99.6
Supply of copies of OC records
M ABEW RiF AR 2R BRI
Handling of suggestions/complaints FIRIFEFHTRA
BB - WMRTARE
EXREINIFRE
g 2B TS
mg -
Replies to
suggestions or
complaints will be - -
sent within 10
calendar days of
their receipt. If this
is not possible, an
interim reply will be
sent within this
period.
ET TEREEFENE R R TR XH
Note 1: Excluding complicated cases and instruments withheld from registration
E2 TBREEFENENFEZIREM MIER XS IE
Note 2: Excluding complicated cases and applications that require further supporting documents for processing
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(b) 2025/26 FEE RS A B (E M B HI N2025F4 1 B i#2)

PERFORMANCE PLEDGES 2025/26 (WITH EFFECT FROM 1 APRIL 2025)

R 55 #5 &
Service Standard

PR 55 2% 5 THERX yakan
Service Type Working Day(s) Minutes

R 55 18 1
(0K B AR 55 45 /£ £
A5t)
Performance
Target (% meeting
service standard)

1. B L3 XM
Registration of land documents
(@ AREIXPEREC EMANPBEN L
MO SR
From receipt of an instrument to updating the (@) 11

land register with the registered instrument
(See Note 1); and

(b) TR EAIBIRFF HIEC I M X PixE
Q%Ai(iﬁm)
Completion of imaging and return of (b) 3
the registered instrument to the lodging
party (See Note 1)

14 (a+b)

90

2. EENER L IEH

Counter search of land registers 15

97

3 RELIHLFEELERE
Supply of imaged copies of land records
(a) EHE v EEX
Over the counter
o FESKEN
Without oversized plans
o fitENAREN
With oversized plans
(b) E T K L AR % 1T 1
Order via online services
(i) 5 TW
Collection in person
o TEAEEN
Without coloured plans
o fEBEREN
With coloured plans
o fitEAREN
With oversized plans
(ii) HE 3 34 B 1% & 2\ 5] 1% &
Delivery by post or courier
o TEAEGEN
Without coloured plans
- TF6m Ty
Orders placed before 6 pm
- N6 EREEZM EHBER
RARREAIT
Orders placed after 6 pm or on
Saturdays, Sundays & public holidays
o hEAREEN
With coloured plans
o fitEAREN
With oversized plans

15

97

97

97

97

97

97

97

97

97
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Mt | Annex |

R &5 18 ¥
BR 5 #5 CEE RS 7R £
Service Standard Bot)
Performance
R %5 2% 3l THERX ok Target (% meeting

Service Type Working Day(s) Minutes service standard)

4, Bt L FINER
Supply of certified copies of land records
(a) EHE (L 70 2
Over the counter
o tiEILM
Land registers
o FENKENAE G LR A
Imaged copies without oversized plans
LI BESoPNSII:0b- 2= SIS E R R
Imaged copies with oversized plans
(b) &I £ AR 1T
Order via online services
(i) *5qm
Collection in person
o THIEIZM
Land registers
o THBAEAIR
Imaged copies
- PEGAEM
Without oversized plans
- rEEREN
With oversized plans
(if) Bf & 36 H 1% & 4+ B 1% i
Delivery by post or courier
o T EIDMH
Land registers
- TF6R BT
Orders placed before 6 pm
- MFeREXEEH N  EHER
AVIN RN
Orders placed after 6 pm or on
Saturdays, Sundays & public holidays
o FENKENA G E A
Imaged copies without oversized plans
o M KB RAL I ER
Imaged copies with oversized plans

35 97

35 97

97

97

97

97

97

97

97

97

5, HEIMBERS
Sale of Memorial Day Book (MDB)
(@) EIMBEAENRIF
Approval of MDB applications
b) 2B IMBERE AR
Delivery of MDB data files

98

98

6. HERBIMBEARS
Sale of Monthly Memorial Information on
Mortgage Transactions (MMIM)
(a) AR BIMBE AEHBRIE
Approval of MMIM applications
b) ZERBIMBEAETHER
Delivery of MMIM data files

98

98
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R %5 18 47
PR 55 % A (R B AR %5 i A )
Service Standard Both)
Performance
R %5 3% 3l THERXR ok Target (% meeting
Service Type Working Day(s) Minutes service standard)

7. BIEEARS
Telephone enquiry services

(@) AR R EE S
Voice mail left during office hours

(b) 0B EKEIEF

Voice mail left after office hours

WEIB S F400 M EE

Return calls within 40 minutes 94
after receiving the voice mail

T NIEXEL10NFIEE

Return calls before 10 am on 94
the next working day

8. it EiCMAER
Amendment of registered data

@ — AR (ANBERIMBERLE FELHZIEM)
Simple Cases (i.e. Rectification of land registers

based on Memorial information)
b) E&NE
Complicated Cases

3 94

95(5‘14)

1 O (See Note 4)

9. NERMIEMA P LLIEMSCH B M
Registration of withheld instruments
redelivered for registration

(@ ARBBRMEIMOPIDIMX B ERED X
e HEHEX L EILM U R
From receipt of a withheld instrument redelivered
for registration to updating the land register with
the registered instrument; and

b) EREELERFHEDEMOXPEEZR

At
Completion of imaging and return of the
registered instrument to the lodging party

15 (a+b) 90

10 b EF T REFARS
Owners’ corporation (OC) services

(@) 732 b 3 3T REEE A2
Registration of OCsg (SeeNote2)

(b) B4 F T REZF L F AR
Supply of copies of OC records

20(;13) 97(514)

(See Note 3) (See Note 4)

30 90

1M AEEYRIF
Handling of suggestions/complaints

Ahh oW R 2N SRR fE )
TANEE - MRADAREEX
EHNFRIEE 2GR TH
FEE -

Replies to suggestions or
complaints will be sent within

10 calendar days of their

receipt. [f this is not possible,

an interim reply will be sent

within this period.

|

A1 TEFEEENREER ETMEXH

Note 1: Excluding complicated cases and instruments withheld from registration

2 TEEE ENRI T ZRMAM ML R X H B IE

Note 2: Excluding complicated cases and applications that require further supporting documents for processing
3 ZETTORSITE

Note 3: Enhanced service standard

x4 ZIRTTE RS BT

Note 4: Enhanced performance target
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ANNEX Il
(@) 2024/25 FE L MUK EESERSER

MEMBERSHIP OF THE LAND REGISTRY JOINT STANDING
COMMITTEE 2024/25

* & Chairperson

=+ Mo JF At 4k BEMN LT Ms Joyce TAM Wai-yee
The Land Registry

Z B Members

4 #b)F A 4L T RELE Mr PANG Ka-fai
The Land Registry (Bt 22025 1H) (Until January 2025)
REWML L Ms Alice LEUNG Wai-han
(34 HE 20254 18) (With effect from January 2025)
ZEERE L+ Ms Christina CHOI Hang-suen
(B 202444 H) (Until April 2024)
FEELEE Mr Eric LEE Tak-wai
(£ HE 7 20244F4H) (With effect from April 2024)
BRER T Ms Javy CHAN Chiu-ling
BEEAEN2 5K 45 2 & Ms Debbie CHEUNG Fong
The Law Society of Hong Kong MAAZ L Ms Emily LAM Yuet-ming
KA 2L Ms Sylvia SIU Wing-yee
mEMKRELE Mr Terry YEUNG Po-lam

M $ Secretary

o b OFE A Ak REWLZ L Ms Alice LEUNG Wai-han
The Land Registry (Bt 22025 14) (Until January 2025)
X bEL A+ Ms Eva LAU Siu-man

(£ HE 202541 H) (With effect from January 2025)
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(b) 2024/25 FE L EFMUF R HREZ/PNA(RENMER

MEMBERSHIP OF THE LAND REGISTRY CUSTOMER LIAISON
GROUP (PRIVATE SECTOR) 2024/25

* & Chairperson
+ 3T A 4k
The Land Registry

Z 8 Members

BB RS

Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants

EarRERLS
Hong Kong Real Estate Agencies
General Association

BB REEWHEERAF
Society of Hong Kong Real Estate
Agents Limited

BEERITRS
The Hong Kong Association of
Banks

EENEMF2
The Hong Kong Institute of
Surveyors

(Bt E2025F14)
Z2EW L+
(A4 H B 7202541 7)

PR 45X % A&

(B E2025F14)

A FEAY 2+

(434 HE 720252 F)
PR

BRI LA

(Bt 22025 1H)
B8 Ft 4 A&

(L£x4 H B 720252 F)

MERA In 2z +

(Bt 220247 1)
EIREBELAE

(£ HEI 7202447 A)

208 5 £

(B E2025%F14)
BERELEE

(L£EX4 H A 720252 F)

B O 5% 22 £

(Bt E2025F14)
MBI AE

(L34 H B 720252 A)
o B4 S A

FK I £

(Bt E2025F14)
2L &L

(42 H B 720252 A)
TRELEE

&8 + # X M4 EZ & € THE LAND REGISTRY TRADING FUND HONG KONG

Mr PANG Ka-fai

(Until January 2025)

Ms Alice LEUNG Wai-han
(With effect from January 2025)

Mr Alan CHAN Wai-hon

(Until January 2025)

Ms TANG Yuen-yee, Loren Gertrud
(With effect from February 2025)
Mr Ivan LAU Ho-kit

Hon Edmund WONG Chun-sek
(Until January 2025)

Mr Parco WU Chun-sing

(With effect from February 2025)

Ms SZE Ming-yu

(Until July 2024)

Mr POON Tat-hang

(With effect from July 2024)

Mr Anthony KWOK Chong

(Until January 2025)

Mr Nick WONG Ying-wai

(With effect from February 2025)

Ms Alieza CHAN

(Until January 2025)

Mr Robert LAM Chun-wing
(With effect from February 2025)
Mr Eric CHUNG Ou-wa

Ms HAU Wing-shuen

(Until January 2025)

Ms Jessica LEUNG Pui-yee
(With effect from February 2025)
Mr Paul LI Man-hong



=+ 3 A b
The Land Registry

EERIMS
The Law Society of Hong Kong

W $ Secretary
+ 0% A 4k
The Land Registry

BRE Bt
EFHrL
PRGN 22 £

(Bt 202411 4)
I E A+

B4 1l Annex I

Ms Javy CHAN Chiu-ling

Ms Emily FOK Wai-kan

Mrs Cindy LAM TSE Shuk-yee
(Until November 2024)

Miss Cynthia TANG Wai-wing

(43 H B R 20244 11 F) (With effect from November 2024)

X bELE

2B 7+

(Bt 22025 1H)
ENLZ L

EZIRE L&

EERELE

BEX LTI

BB E

(Bt 2202412 4)
mEHLZT

(£ HBI H2025F 1 4)
Bms gt

(Bt 220247 H)
TEF+

(£ H B /20247 A)
BRI A&

(A4 H B 720251 8)

X@EELZ L+

(Bt 22025 14)
HENKE

(£ HE 7 2025F2 A )
FHLRE

HhERILAE

218 ka4

& 458 44 22 =

Ms Eva LAU Siu-man

Ms Alice LEUNG Wai-han
(Until January 2025)

Ms Delphine MA Sau-man

Mr Andrew MAK Chun-wai

Mr Kenneth POON Fai-yiu

Ms Ella TSOI Sau-man

Mr Francis WAN

(Until December 2024)

Ms Carmen WONG Ka-man
(With effect from January 2025)
Mr Isaac YUEN Wai-chuen
(Until July 2024)

Ms Evian WONG Wai-fong
(With effect from July 2024)

Mr Benson CHAN Man-chung
(With effect from January 2025)

Ms AU Kin-man

(Until January 2025)

Mr CHUNG Che-kwong

(With effect from February 2025)
Mr Alson CHAI

Mr Tommy CHUNG Kwok-keung
Mr LEONG Chi-wai

Mr Charlie LEUNG Chi-yin

Mr Courtney LEUNG Tsz-hang

Miss Cherie CHOW Yuen-shan
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(c) 2024/25 FE L EFMUF AR EZ/PNA(AENMER

MEMBERSHIP OF THE LAND REGISTRY CUSTOMER LIAISON

GROUP (PUBLIC SECTOR) 2024/25

* & Chairperson
+ 3T A 4k
The Land Registry

Z i Members
BREARIFIEEF
Agriculture, Fisheries and
Conservation Department

BETFE
Buildings Department

BEAEBEX

Customs and Excise Department
eI

Department of Justice
INBRIFE

Environmental Protection
Department

8 B 4k

Fire Services Department

RYINED A E
Food and Environmental
Hygiene Department

B 7= b &
Government Property Agency

REEFLE

Home Affairs Department

EEEENS
Hong Kong Housing Society

EBESA
Hong Kong Police Force

BEEE
Housing Department

TRERE

(B E2025F18)

REW 2L

(45 H B 5202541 A)

BrE#Z L+

HEIUREE

KRZFKE

R+

AR L L

PR KM 58 A&

R/DERAE

HEEFELL
PUDDES 3o

BRI E L

FHEXL

BrtA i+

X & g

FlRER L

EITERAE
BRI
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Mr PANG Ka-fai

(Until January 2025)

Ms Alice LEUNG Wai-han
(With effect from January 2025)

Ms CHAN Po-lam

Mr Eddie CHOY Lap-shing

Mr CHEUNG Tai-on

Miss Ceci HO Kin-ying

Miss YEE Nga-wai

Mr CHAN Tai-fai

Mr NG Siu-keung

Miss IP Wai-ting
Miss LAU Lai-fun

Mr King CHAN Tsz-yin

Ms Jessica LEE Ching

Ms Fanny CHAN Lai-kuen

Mr Kelvin LAU Cheuk-fung

Ms Clarice LO Kit-ying

Mr Aaron CHOI
Ms Vanessa TAN Yuet-ling



REBAE
Independent Commission
Against Corruption

M5B
Inland Revenue Department

B E
Lands Department

ERENE
Legal Aid Department

WrrEgEE
Official Receiver’s Office

Bk
Planning Department

Zimll i E
Rating and Valuation
Department

HoBHNE
Social Welfare Department

+ 0T A Ak
The Land Registry

# $ Secretary
=+ 3 F A b
The Land Registry

MAEIL L+
He B il 22

3K £ 22 £
KEM LT
FHMRE
BMRBLE
EMEXRLT
Y £

FRIEL L
BREXE

BRI IR e 4

Mg e X £

B Lt
EFHrL
PRGN 22 £

(Bt 202411 4)
SE M+

B4 1l Annex I

Ms June LAM Sin-yee
Ms Sandy Sze Hiu-hung

Ms CHEUNG Yuk-shan
Miss Lana CHANG
Miss Rosa LI Man-yi
Mr Felix CHIU

Miss Shara WONG

Ms Doris WOO

Ms Estella LEE
Mr Harris LIU Ka-chuen

Mr Joe CHAN Lap-yin

Ms Angel LAM

Ms Javy CHAN Chiu-ling

Ms Emily FOK Wai-kan

Mrs Cindy LAM TSE Shuk-yee
(Until November 2024)

Miss Cynthia TANG Wai-wing

(£ X4 H B 792024 4 11 A ) (With effect from November 2024)

X bELE

REW L L

(Bt 22025 1H)
EXL T

ZIRE LA

28 G

BB E

(Bt 202412 4)
BEEHLZLT

(£ HHBI H2025F 1 4)
REs kA

(Bt 220247 H)
TEFZL

(L£Ex4 HE 720247 F)
BRI A&

(£ HEI 720251 4)

J&E) 958 4 22 =

Ms Eva LAU Siu-man

Ms Alice LEUNG Wai-han
(Until January 2025)

Ms Delphine MA Sau-man

Mr Andrew MAK Chun-wai

Mr Kenneth POON Fai-yiu

Ms Ella TSOI Sau-man

Mr Francis WAN

(Until December 2024)

Ms Carmen WONG Ka-man
(With effect from January 2025)
Mr Isaac YUEN Wai-chuen
(Until July 2024)

Ms Evian WONG Wai-fong
(With effect from July 2024)

Mr Benson CHAN Man-chung
(With effect from January 2025)

Miss Cherie CHOW Yuen-shan
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(d) 2024/26 F E(+ L MEFNDESEZRSER
MEMBERSHIP OF THE LAND TITLES ORDINANCE STEERING
COMMITTEE 2024/25

F f& Chairperson

4 HFE A Ab EEMZ L Ms Joyce TAM Wai-yee
The Land Registry

% B Members
HBREZRAS fal 218 % A& Mr Michael KAN Kin-hang
Consumer Council

F B 7] FTRESE Mr Samuel LEE Chiu-ting
Department of Justice
KRB st Ms Jenny CHOI Mui-fun
Development Bureau (Bt 220253 H) (Until March 2025)
MR i2 1822+ Mrs Elina CHAN NG Ting-ting
(x4 H A H2025F3H) (With effect from March 2025)
HERELER DB Z I Ms Juliet LEUNG Tak-lai
Estate Agents Authority
AL WUB HEE KX Mr Alfred LAM Kwok-cheong

Heung Yee Kuk New Territories

BBRBUESERAA BHIFK T Ms Joanna WONG Man-sze
Hong Kong Mortgage
Corporation Limited

MK EE JE UK B 2+ Miss Anita TONG Wing-sze
Lands Department (Bt = 202412 7) (Until December 2024)
98 fifl 52 2 + Ms Ophelia LOK Pui-man
(“£ 3% H B /2024 4F 12 A ) (With effect from December 2024)
BRERTIAS EL$ R Ms Vivian WONG Wing-hang
The Hong Kong Association of
Banks
3T A &b TEESLYE Mr PANG Ka-fai
The Land Registry (Bt 22025 1H) (Until January 2025)
2EW L Ms Alice LEUNG Wai-han
(42 H B 72025 1 /) (With effect from January 2025)
2B+ Ms Christina CHOI Hang-suen
(B =202444 1) (Until April 2024)
FIEMAEE Mr Eric LEE Tak-wai

(XL HH20244F 4 H) (With effect from April 2024)

FrRlha BimELt Ms Lilian CHIANG Sui-fook
The Law Society of Hong Kong

BEEMTRERES R e Mr Louis LOONG Hon-biu
The Real Estate Developers
Association of Hong Kong

W Secretary

4 #h)F A 4k BERAREAE Mr Patrick WONG Pak-sum
The Land Registry (B =202542H) (Until February 2025)
KRR %K A& Mr Duncan CHEUNG Chun-tung

(£ HEI H202592 ) (With effect from February 2025)
98 &+ I EMAEiEE € THE LAND REGISTRY TRADING FUND HONG KONG
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(€) 2024/25 F E L U NKIIRITERSER
MEMBERSHIP OF THE LAND TITLES ORDINANCE REVIEW

COMMITTEE 2024/25

* & Chairperson
+ 4T A 4k
The Land Registry

Z A Members
2 A

Department of Justice

RER
Development Bureau

EEARMAL

Hong Kong Bar Association

R S E
CERBWEELI®R L)
Lands Department

(Legal Advisory and
Conveyancing Office)

4 T A b
The Land Registry

EHENE
The Law Society of Hong Kong

M+ Secretary
+ 0T A 4k
The Land Registry

B+

(B E2024F 4 7)
FEFLEE

(£ H B 72024 F 4 7)

WiTRX L
MB gL
FRESLE

[55=$t:- R o
(B Z2024%F67)
Bt

Ms Christina CHOI Hang-suen
(Until April 2024)

Mr Eric LEE Tak-wai

(With effect from April 2024)

Ms Frances HUI Hang-ka
Ms Francoise LAM See-man
Mr Samuel LEE Chiu-ting

Miss Wendy CHEN Wai-tik
(Until June 2024)
Miss Louise WEN Yun

(£ X4 H B 920244 11 A) (With effect from November 2024)

oK L3 22 £

Z bR e A&
BERMZ L

NNEE L+
BB+
(Bt 202412 4)
%M E 2+

Miss CHEUNG Hoi-shan

Mr Andrew MAK
Ms Sara TONG

Miss Freda LAU Kam-kam
Miss Anita TONG Wing-sze
(Until December 2024)

Ms Ophelia LOK Pui-man

(£ X4 H B 92024 4 12 A ) (With effect from December 2024)

(B Z=2025%1H)
2B+

(£ HB RH2025F 1 4)
BFZ I

BERRESLE
Ky KL

AR L
BXAHEEE

FEAXL

Mr PANG Ka-fai

(Until January 2025)

Ms Alice LEUNG Wai-han

(With effect from January 2025)
Ms WONG Chung-sei

Mr Peter AHERNE
Ms Debbie CHEUNG Fong

Ms Emily LAM Yuet-ming
Mr Raymond WONG Man-wa

Ms Shirley LEE Po-kwan
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( 2024/25F L EMBEERSER

MEMBERSHIP OF THE TITLE REGISTRATION EDUCATION

COMMITTEE 2024/25

* & Chairperson
+ 3T A 4k
The Land Registry

Z R Members
BBEEZAS

Consumer Council

WERENER
Estate Agents Authority

MR WE
Heung Yee Kuk New Territories

BRAREEREDS

Hong Kong Family Law Association

EBRIBIESBER AT
Hong Kong Mortgage
Corporation Limited

XA # B 4k
Information Services Department

ERRTAS
The Hong Kong Association of
Banks

=+ 3 F A b
The Land Registry

FERN2
The Law Society of Hong Kong

BEEMFRERES
The Real Estate Developers
Association of Hong Kong

W Secretary
+ 0T A 4k
The Land Registry

BEMZ L

& fl 3 2 +

THMBEE

NER=P S

8 5 &

FshE £

RARK L

B E A

(B E2025%F1 1)

REW 2L

(L34 H B 720251 7)

FRHEE
Bimmiat
X £
mXAEEE

REI&E

BERRLE

(Bt 2202521 )

BEmE XL

(434 H B /920252 A)

100 &%+ # X M4 E = E € THE LAND REGISTRY TRADING FUND HONG KONG

Ms Joyce TAM Wai-yee

Ms Amy WONG Pui-shan

Mr lvan WONG

Mr Alfred LAM Kwok-cheong

Mr Derek K. HO

Ms Celia CHAU Wang-wai

Ms Josephine YU Yuet-king

Mr Donald FUNG Ting-chung

Mr PANG Ka-fai

(Until January 2025)

Ms Alice LEUNG Wai-han
(With effect from January 2025)
Mr Eric LEE Tak-wai

Mr Kenneth POON Fai-yiu

Ms Lilian CHIANG Sui-fook
Ms Lilian MAK Pui-yu
Mr Raymond WONG Man-wa

Mr YU Cheung-kong

Mr Patrick WONG Pak-sum
(Until February 2025)

Miss Wendy WONG Yuen-kwan
(With effect from February 2025)
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